
Annual Report

2022-23



3GEA ANNUAL REPORT 2022 - 2023

Contents

4 Australian Gas at a Glance

6 About GEA

8 GEA Strategic Plan 2023-26

10 Chair’s Report with Amber Fennel

12 Treasurer’s Report with Tanya Rybarczyk

14 CEO’s Report with Brett Heffernan

18 Key Activities

26 Technical Report with Darryl Ramm

34 GEA 2022-23 Honours

36 Directors’ Report

40	 Statement	of	Profit	or	Loss	and	Other	Comprehensive	Income

41 Statement of Financial Position

42 Statement of Changes in Equity

43 Statement of Cash Flows

44 Notes to the Financial Statements

60 Directors’ Declaration

61	 Independent	Audit	Report

64	 Members	and	Associates

65	 Honorary	and	Life	Members



4 GEA ANNUAL REPORT 2022 - 2023 5GEA ANNUAL REPORT 2022 - 2023

Australian Gas at a Glance

Gas	Energy	Australia	compiles	Gas	Facts	based	on	annual	data.	It	is	updated	as	authoritative	facts,	
figures	and	research	about	gas	production	and	use	in	Australia	are	published,	citing	fully	attributed	data	
from	independent	sources.

Gas	is	a	mainstay	of	the	national	economy	and	is	an	irreplaceable	ingredient	for	our	manufacturing	
base,	driving	billions	in	economic	activity	through	its	myriad	through-chain	applications.

Gas in Australia generates 
$70.124	billion	in	economic	
activity	-	underpinning	3.4%	of	
GDP.	The	2020-21	figures	are	
subdued	due	to	Covid	impacts,	
but the report forecasts a strong 
rebound.
ACIL Allen Consulting, Economic 
Contribution of the Australia Gas 
Economy in 2020-21, November 2022.

Australia’s	gas	sector	and	its	
networks	support	241,646	full-
time	local	jobs.
ACIL Allen Consulting, Economic 
Contribution of the Australia Gas 
Economy in 2020-21, November 2022

Gas	production	makes	up	the	
lion’s share of the economic 
contribution of the gas supply 
chain	to	national	domestic	
activity	at	over	$40	billion,	while	
supporting	109,284	Aussie	jobs.
ACIL Allen Consulting, Economic 
Contribution of the Australia Gas 
Economy in 2020-21, November 2022.

The	transport	and	distribution	
of	gas	across	Australia	drives	
$8.117	billion	in	economic	
activity	and	supports	36,508	
Aussie	jobs.
ACIL Allen Consulting, Economic 
Contribution of the Australia Gas 
Economy in 2020-21, November 2022.

Gas-fired	electricity	generation	
in	Australia	provides	$4.11	
billion	in	economic	activity,	and	
supports	12,289	Aussie	jobs.	
Importantly,	as	intermittent	
generating renewables (solar 
and	wind)	are	more	relied	on	as	
coal	exists	the	market,	gas	will	
become	increasingly	relied	upon	
to	fill	the	inevitable	downtime	
gaps.
ACIL Allen Consulting, Economic 
Contribution of the Australia Gas 
Economy in 2020-21, November 2022.

Through high temperature 
manufacturing,	gas	contributes	
$5.14	billion	in	economic	activity	
and	supports	24,205	Aussie	
jobs.

Gas is essential in 
generating	industrial	heat	for	
manufacturing,	including	steel,	
glass,	bricks,	ceramics...	to	
list	a	few.	In	this	process	it	is	
irreplaceable given electricity 
cannot	generate	the	800-1,300	
degree	Celsius	temperatures	
required.
ACIL Allen Consulting, Economic 
Contribution of the Australia Gas 
Economy in 2020-21, November 2022.

As	a	feedstock	(or	ingredient)	
in	modern	manufacturing,	
gas	generates	$7.75	billion	to	
economic	activity	and	supports	
33,074	Aussie	jobs.	Gas	is	a	
vital	and	irreplaceable	feedstock	
in the making of many things 
we	need	for	everyday	life,	
including	plastics,	fertilisers,	
pharmaceuticals,	rubber,	
propellants,	refrigeration,	
adhesives,	cosmetics.	
ACIL Allen Consulting, Economic 
Contribution of the Australia Gas 
Economy in 2020-21, November 2022.

Gas-related	capital	expenditure,	
or the gas sector’s investment 
in	upgrading	its	operations,	
generates	almost	$5	billion	in	
domestic	economic	activity,	
supporting	26,285	Aussie	jobs.
ACIL Allen Consulting, Economic 
Contribution of the Australia Gas 
Economy in 2020-21, November 2022.

Some	130,000	businesses	
across Australia rely on gas for 
both	industrial	heat	(to	make	
steel,	bricks,	alumina,	ceramics,	
etc)	and	as	a	feedstock	
(that	is,	as	an	ingredient	in	
making	plastics,	chemicals,	
pharmaceuticals	and	fertilisers...	
to	list	just	a	few.
Deloitte Access Economics analysis 
of Australian Bureau of Statistics data, 
March 2017.

Taxes,	rates,	fees	and	royalties	
from	Australian	gas	yield	
$18.2	billion	a	year,	supporting	
essentials	services	and	
infrastructure,	such	as	hospitals,	
schools	and	roads	across	the	
country.
AEAS, Economic and Employment 
Contribution of the Australian Gas 
Industry Supply Chain, 2020-21.

Almost	70%	of	Australian	homes	
use	mains	or	bottled	gas	for	
heating,	cooking	and	hot	water	
-	that’s	5.2	million	households	
and	growing	by	100,000	per	
year.
Frontier Economics, Gas Vision 2050: 
Delivering A Clean Energy Future, 
September 2020.

Around	2	million	Australian	
homes	use	LPG	indoors,	which	
is	supplied	through	cylinders.
Frontier Economics, Gas Vision 2050: 
Delivering A Clean Energy Future, 
September 2020.

Australia’s gas infrastructure 
can store the same amount 
of energy as 6 billion Tesla 
Powerwall	batteries.
Deloitte Access Economics analysis 
of Australian Bureau of Statistics data, 
March 2017.

Gas	provides	around	one-
quarter	(23%)	of	Australia’s	
end-use	energy	consumption	
and,	even	by	today’s	standards,	
is	cleaner	and	more	efficient	
in generating higher levels of 
renewable	electricity.
Frontier Economics, Gas Vision 2050: 
Delivering A Clean Energy Future, 
September 2020.

Over	18.1*	million	gas	and	
LPG	appliances,	including	
barbeques,	are	in	use	across	
Australia,	with	more	than	
20	million**	gas	cylinders	in	
circulation	at	any	given	time.
*Frontier Economics, Gas Vision 2050, 
September 2020. 
**GEA Member data 2022.

Victoria is the largest user of 
gas	in	Australia,	with	79%	of	
homes using gas for cooking 
and	heating	to	keep	warm	in	
winter.

Frontier Economics, Gas Vision 2050: 
Delivering A Clean Energy Future, 
September 2020.

Research from Frontier 
Economics shows that replacing 
gas appliances in the home 
in Victoria will cost between 
$21,500	and	$42,000	per	
dwelling.

Frontier Economics, Cost of switching 
from gas to electric appliances in the 
home, 8 July 2022.

The	Australian	gas	industry	
invests	$180	million	annually	in	
future	fuels	research	projects,	
including	Hydrogen	and	a	raft	
of	emerging	renewable	and	net	
zero	technologies.
Frontier Economics, Gas Vision 2050: 
Delivering A Clean Energy Future, 
September 2020.
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About GEA

Gas	Energy	Australia	is	the	national	peak	body	representing	the	downstream	gas	fuels	industry,	
encompassing	Liquefied	Petroleum	Gas	(LPG),	Liquefied	Natural	Gas	(LNG),	Compressed	Natural	Gas	
(CNG),	Hydrogen	(H2)	and,	increasingly,	a	raft	of	new	renewable	gases.	The	industry	comprises	major	
companies,	medium	and	small	businesses	across	the	gas	fuels	supply	chain	including	refiners,	fuel	
marketers,	equipment	manufacturers,	gas	transporters,	consultants	and	service	providers.

Representing	Australia’s	leading	gas	providers,	GEA	is	committed	to	the	responsible	promotion	
of	downstream	LPG,	its	use	in	2	million	Aussie	homes	for	indoor	cooking,	heating	and	hot	water,	
across	130,000	industrial	and	commercial	businesses,	agricultural	applications,	as	well	as	millions	of	
recreational	uses	from	BBQs	to	caravan	and	campervans,	boating	and	camping	equipment,	outdoor	
heating	and	hot-air	ballooning.

Established	in	1958	(originally	as	Australian	Liquefied	Petroleum	Gas	Association),	GEA	has	earned	
a	reputation	as	a	leader	in	the	identification,	development	and	achievement	of	positive	policy	and	
technical	outcomes	to	champion	issues	affecting	gas	producers	and	suppliers,	as	well	as	their	
commercial	and	household	customers.

We	are	dedicated	to	generating	more	informed	understanding	and	appreciation	of	the	evolving	role	
LPG	plays	today,	and	must	play	into	the	future,	to	deliver	the	reliable	and	affordable	renewable	options	
to	deliver	the	modern	economic,	environmental	and	social	contribution	relied	upon	by	the	entire	
community.

Gas	is	a	major	contributor	to	the	national	economy,	as	well	as	the	economies	of	all	states	and	territories.	
Its	interconnection	with	almost	all	facets	of	life	is	multi-layered:

• For very high heats in the range of 
800-1,300	degrees	Celcius,	to	facilitate	
modern	industrial	processes.

• As	an	essential	base	ingredient	to	
make	the	products	and	components	
we	rely	on	every	day,	including	
plastics,	glass,	rubber,	refrigeration,	
autoparts,	machinery,	fertilisers,	
pharmaceuticals...	the	list	goes	on.

• Fast,	responsive	and	affordable	heating	
and	cooking	in	2	million	homes.

• Commercial	cooking	and	heating	
in	restaurants,	bars,	clubs	and	
cafes,	as	well	as	schools	and	
hospitals	across	the	country.

• Critical	farming	equipment,	including	
pumps	and	heating	greenhouse	
nurseries	and	animal	rearing.

• More	than	20	million	cylinders	across	
homes,	backyards,	community	and	
charity	groups,	small	hospitality	
businesses	(food	trucks	and	coffee	
vans),	caravans	and	worksites.

But	the	LPG	sector	is	also	playing	a	pivotal,	leading	role	in	developing	renewable	gases	that	lead	to	
zero	emissions	as	part	of	a	decarbonising	economy.

Gas	is	an	ever-evolving	Australian	success	story,	with	proud	traditions	and	a	lasting	legacy.	It	remains,	
and	will	continue	to	be,	a	mainstay	in	the	Australian	way	of	life.

As	such,	GEA	is	a	driving	force	for	the	promotion	and	recognition	of	the	modern	and	changing	
contribution	the	downstream	gas	sector	makes	to	benefit	of	all	Australians.
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GEA Strategic Plan 2023-26

In	November	2022,	the	Gas	Energy	Australia	Board	formalised	the	Association’s	Strategic	Plan	and	
Communications	Strategy	for	2023-26.	It	embarks	on	initiatives	to	positively	re-position	the	gas	sector	
and	the	issues	it	faces	and,	in	doing	so,	champion	and	advance	the	interests	of	members.

Supported	by	market	research	(undertaken	by	APPEA	in	2021-22)	and	substantive	research	
(undertaken	by	ACIL	Allen	and	Frontier	Economics	on	behalf	of	GEA	in	2022-23),	this	Strategy	
seeks	to	drive	key	issues	of	importance	to	GEA	and	make	those	issues	and	agendas	relevant	to	key	
stakeholders	and	the	broader	community.

This	strategy	is	underpinned	by	the	principles	and	desired	outcomes,	of	‘social	marketing’,	namely:

1.	 Proactively RAISE	the	positive	profile	of	LPG	(in	its	various	forms)	as	a	
vital,	proud,	innovative,	in-touch,	competitive,	reliable	and,	importantly,	a	
low	emission	leading	to	renewable	actual	zero	emissions	sector;

2.	 In	doing	so,	BUILD	awareness	of	LPG’s	positive	role,	contribution	and	value	to	the	broader	
community	and	stakeholder	groups	–	today,	into	the	near	future,	to	2050	and	beyond;

3.	 Thereby,	ESTABLISH	confidence,	trust	and	credibility	in	the	information	and	endeavours	of	
GEA	and	its	members	–	bringing	the	broader	community	and	stakeholders	along	on	relevant	
issues	–	and	focusing	community	and	stakeholder	attention	accordingly;	and,	ultimately

4.	 INFLUENCE	community	and	stakeholder	attitudes,	behaviours,	decisions	and	choices.

Consistent	with	its	mission,	GEA’s	overarching	goal	is	to	convey	a	united	industry	voice	to	key	
stakeholders	(governments,	state	authorities	and	the	community)	on	the	value	and	benefits	of	gaseous	
fuels.	

This	advocacy	helps	GEA	achieve	its	broader	goals	of	a	cleaner	environment,	improved	safety,	
enhanced	energy	security	and	lower	energy	costs	to	deliver	sustainable	economic	prosperity	in	a	zero	
carbon	economy.

The	Association’s	stakeholder	engagement	is	supported	by	progressive	policy	development	based	on	
sound	research,	analysis	and	expert	commentary,	the	ongoing	development	of	national	and	regulatory	
standards,	innovative	products	and	technology,	proactive	media	and	community	engagement,	and	the	
development	of	the	industry’s	specialist	workforce.
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Chair’s Report with Amber Fennell

On	behalf	of	the	Gas	Energy	Australia	Board	of	Directors,	I	
would	like	to	sincerely	thank	all	Members	and	Associates	for	
their	continued	support	of	the	Association	over	the	year.

It’s	been	a	year	of	change	and	charting	new	territory	for	GEA.	
While	the	Association	has	been	focused	in	pulling	together	
the	facts,	figures	and	research	necessary	for	us	to	mount	
a	credible	case	for	our	sector’s	path	to	decarbonise,	we	
have	also	been	focused	on	a	new	push	via	direct	political	
engagement	and	heightened	public	discussion	in	the	
mainstream	media.	It	is	a	credit	to	the	Secretariat	that	this	
has	been	managed	with	overwhelmingly	positive	responses	
and	coverage.	

The	next	few	years	it	will	be	vital	to	demonstrate	a	transition	pathway	to	net	zero	to	ensure	the	long-
term	viability	of	the	industry.	The	Frontier	Economics’	modelling	of	LPG’s	pathway	to	zero	emissions	is	
seminal	research	that	underpins	the	work	the	Secretariat	does	every	day.	Our	engagement	with	federal	
and	state	governments	and	their	departments	is	already	seeing	growing	recognition	of	the	role	LPG	can	
play	in	a	decarbonising	economy,	with	the	Secretariat	fostering	closer	relationships,	in-depth	briefings	
and	facilitating	direct	Member	engagement	with	relevant	departments.	This	work	will	continue	for	the	
next	couple	of	years	to	position	bioLPG,	renewable	LPG	and	renewable	DME	as	recognised	 
renewable	gases.

In	November,	the	Board	approved	the	Strategic	
Plan	and	first	ever	Communications	Strategy,	
which	maps	out	our	direction	and	priorities	
covering	2023	to	2026.	Importantly,	this	plan	is	
backed-up	by	robust	research	to	inform	those	
priorities.

Over	2022-23	GEA	has	undergone	financial	
restructuring to secure the Association’s long-
term	viability,	strategically	realigning	our	budget	
priorities	to	focus	on	the	immediate	and	long-
term	tasks	of	political	and	public	engagement,	
membership	representation	and	building	alliances	
across	the	gas	sector	and	other	important	
stakeholders.

We	welcomed	new	members	this	year	in	Clean	
Energy	Fuels	Australia	and	Gasbot,	and	saw	
Oceangas	return	as	a	member.	There	is	little	

“In	November,	the	Board	
approved	the	Strategic	Plan	
and	first	ever	Communications	
Strategy,	which	maps	out	our	
direction	and	priorities	covering	
2023	to	2026.	Importantly,	this	
plan	is	backed-up	by	robust	

research to inform  
those	priorities.”

Amber Fennell 
Chair 
Gas Energy Australia

doubt	the	growing	public	presence	of	GEA	is	becoming	a	rallying	point	for	the	LPG	sector.	We	need	this	
work	to	continue	with	ongoing	investment	in	quality	industry	data,	along	with	the	willingness	to	champion	
industry	issues.

In	late	2022,	the	Board	of	Directors	agreed	to	a	review	of	the	GEA	Constitution,	to	tidy	up	redundant	
legacy	issues,	allay	confusion	over	voting	rights	and	quorum	requirements,	and	correct	an	inconsistency	
of	Board	representation	between	the	Constitution	and	the	Associate	Alliance	Deed.

The	GEA	Secretariat,	through	its	various	Technical	Committees,	continues	to	ensure	the	industry	
maintains	its	social	license	through	positive	engagement	with	regulators,	government	bodies	and	
Standards	Australia.	This	includes	the	transition	to	the	LCC27	cylinder	valve,	and	the	industry’s	positive	
contribution	during	the	NSW	flood	crisis	where	gas	cylinders	were	provided	to	affected	communities	and	
stray	cylinders	were	collected	and	housed	centrally.

GEA’s	May	2022	National	Forum	was	a	great	success.	It	was	well-attended	but	also	laid	out	clear	issues	
and	opportunities	for	the	industry	to	pursue,	championed	by	the	Association.	Members	will	be	aware	that	
the	GEA	Secretariat	undertake	the	complete	management	of	the	event,	including	program,	promotion,	
venue	requirement	and	sponsorship	packages	in-house.	

I	would	also	like	to	thank	the	Secretariat	for	their	significant	contribution	over	the	last	12	months.	As	
members	we	benefit	from	a	small	but	high	functioning	team	that	continue	to	deliver	value	to	members	
and	the	community	through	targeted	programs	and	advocacy	initiatives.

Looking	ahead,	the	Board	of	Directors	remains	committed	to	growing	the	Association	and	its	relevance.	
It	is	more	important	than	ever	that	Members	rally	in	support	of	the	Association	to	demonstrate	and	
promote	the	continued	value	of	LPG	to	decision-makers	and	the	community.
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Treasurer’s Report with Tanya Rybarczyk

I	am	pleased	to	present	a	summary	of	Gas	Energy	Australia’s	
audited	financial	results	for	the	year	ended	31	March	2023,	
on	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors.	The	2023	Financial	
Statements	have	been	prepared	and	audited	by	our	
appointed	auditor,	Vincents.	The	auditor	has	certified	that	
the	Financial	Statements	are	true	and	correct	without	any	
qualifications.

GEA	reported	a	deficit	of	$12,273	in	the	2022-23	financial	
year,	compared	to	the	deficit	of	$75,048	in	the	previous	
financial	year,	2021-22.	This	positive	change	can	be	
mainly	attributed	to	the	income	generated	from	the	national	

conference	held	in	the	Gold	Coast	in	May	2022	having	cancelled	the	conference	in	the	prior	year.

Membership	income	for	the	2022-23	financial	year	amounted	to	$813,348,	showing	a	2%	increase	
compared	to	$795,616	in	the	previous	financial	year,	2021-22.	This	growth	can	be	attributed	to	the	
addition	of	new	full	members	joining	the	Association.

Interest	earned	on	bank	accounts	and	term	deposit	investments	experienced	significant	improvement.	
In	the	current	financial	year,	the	interest	on	all	accounts	amounted	to	$15,961,	marking	an	increase	from	
$5,498	in	the	last	financial	year.	This	improvement	can	be	attributed	to	both	sensible	cash	management	
practices	and	higher	interest	rates	throughout	the	year.

These	results	demonstrate	our	commitment	to	expanding	our	membership	base,	capitalising	on	
favourable	market	conditions,	and	implementing	effective	financial	management	strategies.	We	remain	
dedicated	to	enhancing	the	value	we	deliver	to	our	members	and	optimising	financial	performance	in	the	
future.

Throughout	the	2022-23	financial	year,	the	Association	remained	committed	to	cost	control	measures.	
However,	the	overall	expenditure	totalled	$1,004,378,	showing	an	increase	of	12%	compared	to	
$893,132	in	the	previous	financial	year.	

The	main	driver	of	the	increase	was	the	costs	associated	with	hosting	the	annual	national	conference	
which	was	not	held	in	the	prior	year.		In	addition,	the	Board	decided	to	strategically	allocate	funds	to	
support	key	research	initiatives.	Specifically,	these	initiatives	included	ACIL	Allen	Consulting’s	study	on	
the	Economic	Contribution	of	the	Australia	Gas	Economy	and	Frontier	Economics’	research	on	LPG’s	
pathway	to	zero	emissions.	GEA	greatly	appreciates	the	contribution	from	the	Australian	Gas	Industry	
Trust	in	co-funding	the	Frontier	Economics	study.

Both research projects have proven to be valuable resources in challenging misconceptions about the 
gas	sector	and	advocating	for	the	significant	contribution	our	sector	makes	presently	and	in	the	future.	

While	the	allocation	of	funds	led	to	an	increase	in	
overall	expenditure,	the	Board	believes	that	these	
investments are crucial for promoting awareness 
and	understanding	of	our	industry’s	role	and	
potential.

Excluding	these	two	significant	cost	drivers,	
underlying	costs	decreased	driven	largely	by	
ceasing	to	use	external	services.	Moving	forward,	
we will continue to prioritise cost control measures 
while strategically allocating resources to support 
important initiatives that contribute to the long-
term	growth	and	development	of	the	gas	sector.

As	of	31	March	2023,	GEA’s	total	current	assets	
amounted	to	$1.3	million	compared	to	$1.5	million	
in	the	previous	year,	reflecting	a	decrease	of	
$129,903.	However,	despite	this	decrease,	the	
Association	maintains	sufficient	liquid	resources	to	

Tanya Rybarczyk 
Treasurer 
Gas Energy Australia

“Both research projects 
have proven to be valuable 

resources in challenging 
misconceptions about the gas 
sector	and	advocating	for	the	
significant	contribution	our	

sector	makes	presently	and	in	
the	future.”

meet	its	short-term	financial	obligations	with	current	liabilities	totalling	$168,230.	

As	of	31	March	2023,	GEA’s	total	assets	were	$1.4	million,	while	total	liabilities	amounted	to	$191,880.	
This	resulted	in	net	assets	remaining	at	a	healthy	level	of	$1.2	million.

It	is	important	to	note	that	the	Association	does	not	have	any	external	borrowings,	and	its	liabilities	
primarily	consist	of	amounts	payable	to	employees	and	suppliers.	As	a	result,	the	financial	risk	of	the	
Association	has	been	assessed	as	low.

The	Board	and	management	of	the	Association	remain	dedicated	to	effectively	managing	member	
resources	and	risks,	with	the	aim	of	ensuring	the	long-term	sustainability	of	the	organisation.
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CEO’s Report with Brett Heffernan

It’s	been	a	whirlwind	first	12	months	at	GEA.	But	it’s	been	
worth	the	effort,	with	the	Association	well-positioned	at	the	
end	of	our	2022-23	operating	year,	focused	on	where	we’re	
going	next	and	how	we’re	going	to	get	there.

GEA	has	embarked	on	a	substantial	overhaul	of	its	staffing,	
resource	allocation,	strategic	priorities	and	engagement	
approach.

In	both	technical	development	and	policy	areas,	GEA	
punches	well	above	its	weight.

Members	rightly	value	GEA	efforts	in	this	space.	And	for	good	reason.	These	efforts	are	well	regarded	
because	they	actively	involve	the	membership	in	committees	and	taskforces.

GEA	is	exceptionally	well	placed	in	its	engagement	with	relevant	regulatory	bodies,	Standards	Australia,	
government	and	non-government	organisations.

The	Association	is	actively	sought	by	those	bodies	for	advice	and	input.	These	relationships	and	
the	ability	to	be	involved	in	key	decision-making	ahead	of	decisions	being	taken	is	a	credit	to	GEA’s	
Manager	-	Technical	Development	Darryl	Ramm.	The	relationships	he	has	forged	are	invaluable.

Likewise,	GEA’s	Policy	and	Research	endeavours	are	comprehensive	and	credible,	lending	significant	
weight	to	the	gas	sector’s	need	to	be	positively	positioned	in	political,	bureaucratic	and	public	thinking.	
That’s	a	credit	to	GEA’s	Manager	-	Policy	and	Research	Melissa	Dimovski,	who	moved	on	from	the	
Association	in	February	2023	with	our	best	wishes.

While	GEA’s	Communications	Coordinator	Tahnee	McElligott	stepped	up	this	year	to	take	on	the	
additional	role	of	Office	Manager.

Greater	emphasis	was	identified	by	the	Board	on	honing	these	strengths	and	leveraging	them	into	
potent,	persuasive	cases	that	influence	opinions	and	outcomes.

From	my	end,	the	focus	has	been	to	harness	this	exceptionally	strong	base	and	turn	it	into	political	
and	public	recognition	for	the	sector	and	influence	policy	directions.	This	is	beginning	to	bear	fruit,	
with	federal	and	state	governments	now	actively	reaching	out	to	GEA,	recognising	the	role	bioLPG,	
renewable	LPG	and	renewable	DME	can	play	in	the	energy	mix.

It	is	fair	to	say	the	entire	gas	sector	–	not	just	GEA	–	has	been	slow	to	embrace	the	opportunities	that	a	
decarbonising	economy,	and	LPG’s	stake	in	it,	presents.	While	playing	catch	up,	GEA’s	core	business	
has	been	geared	to	fill	information	gaps	across	political	and	public	arenas	using	independent	and	

authoritative	factual	data	and	messages.

This	year	the	GEA	Board	approved	the	Strategic	Plan	and	Communications	Strategy	2023-26,	informed	
by	market	research,	substantive	research	and	member	engagement.

Our	four	pillars	underpinning	this	approach	encompass:

• Political	engagement	–	to	influence	politicians	across	the	political	aisle,	including	the	public	
service	and	various	government	agencies.

• Public	engagement	–	to	mount	a	persuasive,	fact-based	case	in	the	mainstream	media	and	
other	channels	advancing	the	sector’s	contribution	today	and	into	the	future…	to	win	in	the	
court	of	public	opinion.

• Third-Party	Allies	–	to	forge	alliances	and	building	collaboration	among	groups	for	a	united	
front	to	decision-makers,	armed	with	quality	data	and	consistent	messages.

• Membership	–	to	engage	in	a	two-way	street.	Drawing	on	the	expertise,	knowledge	and	
insights	to	propel	our	agreed	priorities	forward.	Likewise,	we	need	to	communicate	to	
Members	what	we’re	doing	and	why.

Our	starting	point	has	been	facts.

If	you’re	a	community	group	you	need	only	be	armed	with	concerns.	When	you’re	in	industry	body	your	
facts,	figures	and	arguments	need	to	be	bullet-proof.	It’s	the	number	1	priority.

In	this	effort,	GEA	has	drawn	on	three	research	efforts.

We	commissioned	ACIL	Allen	to	undertake	an	up-to-date	analysis	of	the	publicly	available	data	on	the	
gas	industry’s	direct	and	indirect	economic	contribution.	That	the	sources	are	government	bodies	is	
critical.	It	means	no	one	can	argue	with	it.

The	report	showed	the	gas	sector’s	economic	contribution	at	over	$70	billion	a	year,	with	more	than	
241,000	Australian	jobs	hinging	on	gas.	LPG	alone	underpins	$3.6	billion	a	year	and	15,500	jobs.

This	data,	broken	down	by	state,	is	essential	in	establishing	the	bona	fides	of	the	industry	and	its	
contribution.

We	also	commissioned	Frontier	Economics	to	investigate	the	feasibility	of	the	gas	sector’s	transition	to	
renewable,	net	zero	gases	–	the	timeframe,	the	costs	relative	to	electrification	and	the	technical	capacity	
to	deliver	on	this	commitment.

What	we	got	was	a	seminal	blueprint	detailing	no	fewer	than	eight	pathways	for	LPG	to	decarbonise,	
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embracing	bioLPG,	renewable	LPG	and	renewable	DME.

Eight	months	in	the	making,	the	rigour	of	this	material	and	its	applicability	across	multiple	settings	–	from	
metropolitan	and	regional	in-home	cooking,	heating	and	hot	water;	to	commercial	and	industrial	needs;	
agricultural	applications	and	recreational	uses	stands	our	sector	in	good	stead	for	years	to	come.

In	developing	a	clear,	commercially	viable	and	relatively	easy	path	to	not	only	net	zero,	but	actual	
zero	emissions	from	LPG,	the	modelling	also	provides	compelling	insights	on	the	relative	costs	and	
emissions	profiles	of	gas	use	versus	electrification.	GEA	thanks	the	Australian	Gas	Industry	Trust,	
whose	co-sponsoring	of	this	report,	made	it	possible.

Since	briefing	federal	and	state	governments,	opposition	parties,	government	departments	and	
agencies,	and	independent	stakeholders	GEA	has	had	universal	agreement	for	the	role	renewable	LPG	
can	play	as	part	of	Australia’s	future	energy	mix.

Over	2022-23	APPEA	agreed	to	share	its	market	research	with	GEA.	This	has	allowed	us	to	put	
together	an	informed	government	relations	and	public	positioning	approach.

Filling	these	information	gaps,	while	also	demonstrating	a	commitment	and	ability	to	decarbonise,	is	
essential.

We	have	pulled	these	research	pieces	into	a	comprehensive	communications	push	–	politically	and	
publicly.

Earlier	in	2022	GEA	made	the	decision	to	internalise	our	Government	Relations	activities.	This	has	
been	at	the	executive	level	with	ministers,	shadow	ministers	and	their	staff.	This	builds	on	the	policy	and	
research	work	done	to	date.

Around	this	time	we	asked	members	to	complete	a	Member	Survey	of	activities	covering	operations	
at	the	local	level.	The	plan	is	to	compile	this	electorate-by-electorate	information,	combine	it	with	the	
research	piece,	so	we	can	be	relevant	at	the	local,	state	and	federal	levels.

Armed	with	local,	state	and	national	data	makes	us	important	in	MPs’	electorate	backyards,	regardless	
of	party	lines.	It’s	a	bottom	up	and	top	down	approach	between	the	executive	and	grass	roots	levels.

Communications	is	interwoven	within	all	aspects	of	what	GEA	does	–	across	political,	regulatory,	allied	
industry,	public	(media)	positioning	and	membership	engagement.

Over	the	last	year,	GEA	has	taken	a	decidedly	proactive	approach	to	media	engagement.	We’ve	
achieved	coverage	with	every	item	we’ve	taken	to	the	media	and	now	media	are	seeking	us	for	
comment	and	information.

But	the	measure	of	effective	media	use	isn’t	coverage.	That’s	easy.	To	be	effective	we	need	three	
things:

• prominence,

• volume,	and

• being	on-message.

So	far,	we’ve	ticked	every	box.

While	the	Key	Activities	section	of	this	Annual	Report	addresses	the	details,	GEA	has	achieved	solid	
press,	radio	and	online	news	media	coverage	and	delivered	a	100%	return	on	the	publication	of	all	
opinion	editorials	in	mainstream	metropolitan	newspapers.

We	gratefully	welcomed	three	new	members	over	the	year,	bolstering	GEA’s	ability	to	represent	a	broad	
cross-section	of	the	industry,	which	is	one	of	its	great	strengths.

But	we’ve	been	flying	while	still	building	the	plane.	It	is	armed	with	rigorous	data,	informed	messaging	
and	a	unity	of	purpose	that	we	plan	to	take	that	to	another	level	in	2023-24	and	beyond.

Finally,	I	want	to	thank	the	GEA	Board	and	all	of	our	Members	for	their	unwavering	support	over	
the	year.	It’s	fair	to	say	we’ve	ushered	in	some	substantive	changes,	pushed	a	few	boundaries	and	
traversed	new	territory	for	GEA.

At	every	step,	those	challenges	have	been	met	with	enthusiasm,	grace	and	good	humour	by	Board	and	
staff,	alike,	in	pursuit	of	outcomes	for	Members.

Brett Heffernan 
Chief	Executive	Officer 
Gas Energy Australia



18 GEA ANNUAL REPORT 2022 - 2023 19GEA ANNUAL REPORT 2022 - 2023

Key Activities

The	past	12	months	at	Gas	Energy	Australia	have	been	marked	by	new	initiatives,	new	strategic	foci	
and	new	communications	tools.	These	achieved	tangible	results	in	not	only	raising	the	profile	of	gas,	
especially	LPG,	but	the	role	renewable	LPG	needs	to	play	across	homes,	businesses	and	recreational	
pursuits.

GEA	has	laid	important	foundations	for	advocating	and	disseminating	the	messages	and	issues	vital	to	
regaining	lost	ground	in	the	‘court	of	public	opinion’	–	which	also	impacts	stakeholder	perceptions.

We	have	sought	to	do	so	in	a	dynamic,	influential	and	‘in	touch’	manner	by	reflecting	the	expectations	
and	aspirations	of	the	broader	community	and,	importantly,	the	evolutionary	desire	of	the	sector	to	be	
part	of	Australia’s	clean	energy	mix.

In	addition	to	generating	positive	perceptions	of	the	sector,	this	also	entails	‘wearing	down’	ingrained	
and,	hitherto	unchallenged,	negative	perceptions	of	gas.	This	requires	a	‘constant	drip’	campaign	with	
a	focus	on	key	messages	and	data	to	build	and	strengthen	the	perception	of	LPG	and	its	renewable	
variants	as	an	integral	part	of	the	Australian	economy,	environmental	landscape	and	social	fabric.

An	emphasis	on	the	sector’s	strengths,	overcoming	common	misconceptions	to	demonstrate	why	gas	is	
vital	to	the	community,	has	been	crucial.

Market Research
The	findings	from	APPEA’s	2021-22	qualitative	and	quantitative	market	research	provided	GEA	with	
valuable	insight	to	base	a	strategic	communications	campaign.

However,	the	findings	alone,	along	with	any	list	of	facts	and	statistics	that	cite	the	important	role	played	
gas	in	Australia	are	largely	irrelevant	unless	driven	to	work	for	GEA.	To	this	end,	we	attached	these	
imperatives	to	issues	that	resonate	(and	those	we	could	make	resonate)	with	the	broader	community	
and	other	stakeholders.

This	research	exposed	inherent	strengths	and	weaknesses	for	the	sector	to	grapple	with.	Armed	with	
these	insights,	GEA’s	Communications	Strategy	was	developed	and	implemented.

Substantive Research
ACIL	Allen	Consulting’s	economic	footprint	of	Australian	gas	industry’s	direct	and	indirect	economic	
contribution	has	been	crucial	in	raising	awareness	of	the	importance	of	the	sector	today.	At	over	$70	
billion	a	year	in	domestic	economic	activity	and	more	than	241,000	Australian	full-time	dependent	on	

Media	Activity
As	of	mid-March	2022,	GEA	began	to	raise	the	profile	of	gas.	A	preparedness	to	engage	mainstream	
media	and	assume	a	heightened	media	presence	across	all	issues	has	produced	visible	early	results.

Our	media	profile	saw	an	immediate	and	obvious	boost.	According	to	Meltwater	media	monitoring,	
GEA-led	issues	over	the	year	achieving	638	major	metropolitan	and	regional	media	stories,	including	
press,	radio	and	online.	The	reach	for	these	stories	was	554	million	readers/listeners.	GEA	also	secured	
prominent	coverage	with	numerous	Opinion	Editorials	being	published	in	metropolitan	newspapers.

To	be	frank,	media	hits	–	in-and-of	themselves	–	do	not	mean	a	lot.	Of	more	importance	is	the	
prominence	of	the	coverage	achieved	and	its	ability	to	drive	issues	that	resonate	beyond	the	daily	‘news	
cycle’.	

But,	this	too,	is	not	enough	of	a	measure	to	indicate	positive	media	use.	If	the	coverage	is	incidental,	
meaning	it	is	not	‘on	message’	in	pressing	strategic	objectives,	again,	it	does	not	mean	a	lot.

While	there	will	always	be	incidental	coverage	in	reporting,	over	2022-23	GEA	achieved	a	high	‘on	
message’	rating	of	96%	–	combined	with	high	prominence	and	rising	volume	–	to	ensure	GEA-led	key	
messages	are	getting	through	across	media	coverage.

During	the	year,	GEA	initiated	ongoing	contact	with	key	media	contacts	across	all	states	and	territories,	
including	the	Canberra	parliamentary	press	gallery.	This	heightened	interaction	has	ensured	GEA	is	
seen	as	a	more	valuable	resource	and	worthwhile	go	to	organisation	on	relevant	issues.

Importantly,	there	has	been	a	noticeable	increase,	and	growing	preparedness,	among	mainstream	
media	to	seek	out	GEA	for	comment	on	current	and	emerging	issues	and	events.	This	bodes	well	for	the	
continuing	rise	in	media	prominence	 
and	activity.

gas,	it’s	hard	to	ignore.	LPG	alone	underpins	$3.6	billion	a	year	and	15,500	jobs.

We	also	commissioned	Frontier	Economics	to	investigate	the	feasibility	of	the	gas	sector’s	transition	to	
renewable,	net	zero	gases	–	the	timeframe,	the	costs	relative	to	electrification	and	the	technical	capacity	
to	deliver	on	this	commitment.	The	rigour	of	this	material	and	its	applicability	across	multiple	settings	–	
from	metropolitan	and	regional	in-home	cooking,	heating	and	hot	water;	to	commercial	and	industrial	
needs;	agricultural	applications	and	recreational	uses,	stands	our	sector	in	good	stead	for	years	to	
come.
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Gas plays a significant role 
in Australia’s energy mix, with 
over seven million households 
and businesses using LPG and 
natural gas for their daily 
needs.

The gas sector is already 
contributing to efforts to com-
bat climate change and is well 
on the way to decarbonise 
through renewable gases. Gov-
ernments need to recognise 
this transition and support the 
development of renewable 
gases as part of a circular gas 
economy.

We know consumers prefer 
gas for their cooking, heating 
and hot water. It’s also essen-
tial in manufacturing, where it 
cannot be replaced as an in-
dustrial heat source nor as an 
ingredient in many of the 
products needed in modern 
life, like mobile phones, fertilis-
ers, pharmaceuticals, plastics, 
rubber ... to list just a few.

With gas clearly needed for 
our energy security; and gas 
companies already in transi-
tion to renewable, net zero 
gases; governments should be 
backing them in, not shutting 
them out.

Brett Heffernan is cHief 
executive officer of Gas 
enerGy australia

Time to back in 
gas as partner
IF the disparity in energy sup-
ply and demand have illustrat-
ed anything in recent weeks, 
it’s that governments should 
be broadening the suite of re-
newable energy sources at 
their disposal, not picking win-
ners based on lacklustre form.

Pronouncements of phas-
ing out gas and, in the case of 
Victoria, ruling out renewable 
gases for residential use, ex-
pose the gulf between rhetoric 
and reality.

With coal-fired power liter-
ally shutting down around us, 
renewables like solar and wind 
aren’t filling the growing void.

Just last week, Australia’s 
special adviser on low emis-
sions technology and former 
chief scientist, Dr Alan Finkel, 
noted that as we move with in-
creasing urgency to phase-out 
reliance on coal-fired power 
plants and pivot toward solar 
and wind, natural gas will need 
to act as a “support role” to en-
sure reliable supply.

“The important role for 
natural gas is that it can ramp 
up very quickly, within min-
utes, so if the wind drops or the 
sun goes behind a cloud ... you 
can run it as long as you need 
it,” he told Bloomberg TV. 
“Natural gas, helping us to ac-
celerate the deployment of 
solar and wind, can be very im-
portant. I don’t think every-
body does appreciate that.

“There is a pursuit of perfec-
tion to say get out of fossil fuels 
completely, and eventually we 
will. But for the next 10, 15, 20 
years, being able to call on 
natural gas to firm up the solar 
and wind electricity in a coun-
try like Australia will enable us 
to develop and deploy solar 
and wind at enormous scale 
more quickly, than if we can-
not call on natural gas.”

Last year, all renewables 
combined provided 24 per cent 
of Australia’s energy. That’s 
great, but it means there is a 76 
per cent shortfall. Most of that 
is coal. In the absence of gas, 
existing demands on electricity 
– let alone new expectations – 
cannot be met.

The added benefit is that 
the Australian gas sector is de-
carbonising. This means 
households and businesses can 
keep using the gas they know, 
love and rely on, without add-
ing to the ever-increasing load 
expected of a future electricity 
system.

Australian gas producers 
and suppliers can deliver 100 

per cent renewable, net zero 
gas through the existing net-
work of pipes, cylinders and 
tanks, with minimal changes 
required. In fact, by 2050 the 
saving from this transition to 
hydrogen, for example, has 
been modelled at half – yes, 
half – the rollout costs of elec-
trification. According to Fron-
tier Economics, that’s $13.3bn 
as opposed to a whopping 
$27.5bn.

It’s a little too convenient 
that often the fact that con-
sumers will foot the bill for this 
new infrastructure gets lost, 
which comes on top of the 
costs for exploration, mining, 
refining, manufacturing, con-
structing and connecting the 
elements to make and store 
electricity – not to mention re-
wiring the grids to cope.

tHE ongoing energy crisis 
demonstrates that gov-
ernments need to work 

with gas providers, not demon-
ise them for a short-term PR 
bump. Embracing emerging 
gas technologies being devel-
oped right now is in the inter-
ests of all.

Beyond hydrogen, net zero 
gases like 100 per cent renew-
able dimethyl ether is a game-
changer. This green gas is 
produced from food waste, 

agricultural residues and land-
fill. Biopropane and biometh-
ane are also net zero gases, 
which have the same chemical 
properties and function the 
same as LPG and LNG, but are 
100 per cent renewable.

Any arbitrary bid to sideline 
gas, ignoring these develop-
ments, could be catastrophic. 
Which brings us to Victoria’s 
so-called Gas Substitution 
Roadmap.

Denying Victorians access 
to these new gases is a clear 
lost opportunity. But it also 
means switching in-home ap-
pliances from gas to electricity. 
That cost is entirely borne by 

homeowners. Recent Frontier 
Economics data shows the cost 
of this is between $21,500 and 
$42,000 per dwelling – de-
pending on type and size 
dwelling and appliances used.

All this for a less reliable 
power source. Just last month 
in South Australia, where the 
state relies on renewables like 
solar and wind, gas was the 
only thing preventing multiple 
days of blackouts. That reliable 
back-up will be more import-
ant than ever in a decarbonis-
ing economy.

What is clear is govern-
ments cannot pursue electrifi-
cation as the sole means to 
achieve emission reduction 
targets. The simple reality is 
electrification cannot, and will 
not, do everything. Recent 
geopolitical events and natural 
disasters should be demonstra-
ting the importance of having 
a diverse energy mix to main-
tain secure energy systems and 
absorb shocks.

The danger if this isn’t ap-
proached sensibly is that the 
prevalence of widespread, per-
sistent and repeated blackouts 
will be an ongoing reality for 
Victorians. That’s why bedding 
down a consistent, reliable 
supply of gas – including re-
newable, net-zero gases – is 
imperative.

it’s a reliable, much needed source of energy

We know 
consumers 

prefer gas for 
their cooking, 

heating and 
hot water.

Brett Heffernan
DON’T shOOT 
messeNger
AN airline attendant tells 
you your flight has been 
cancelled. A retail assistant 
explains your urgent order 
has been delayed indefi-
nitely. A call centre opera-
tor informs you that your 
insurance company refuses 
to pay your claim.

Even though we know 
frontline employees are 
mostly the bearers of bad 
news rather than the crea-
tors of it, we have a dreadful 
track record for “shooting 
the messenger”.

During the pandemic, 
the practice of shooting the 
messenger seemed to take 
off as much as baking bread 
and binge watching the hit 
series The Squid Game.

Most recently we have 
directed our blame toward 
those working on the front-
line in the rebounding but 
besieged travel and leisure 
industries.

We know it’s wrong to 
shoot the message carrier 
but that’s not stopped the 
frothing hordes at airports 
and hospitality hot spots 
around the country from 
doing so.

In a recent study pub-
lished in the Harvard Busi-
ness Review, researchers 
discovered that we have a 
natural in-built tendency to 
shoot the messenger even 
though we know they are 
not personally responsible 
for our plight.

The study concluded 
that we attempt to make 
sense of unfair or untimely 
bad news by blaming our 
messengers for things out-
side their control.

An alternative explana-

tions of our odd behaviour 
is that by “killing off” the 
messenger, we mistakenly 
believe we will be able to kill 
off the bad news itself.

Another is that blaming 
employees instead of those 
higher up might be some-
thing to do with the mess-
age carrier’s proximity. We 
lash out at the closest poss-
ible target.

Regrettably, we appear 
to be naturally wired to 
blame those who tell us the 
things we don’t want to 
hear.

Having someone to 
blame makes us feel better. 
That’s particularly the case 
in instances where we feel 
we have a complete lack of 
control over a situation like 
when a flight is unexpected-
ly cancelled.

While it might be diffi-
cult to reverse our well-in-
grained practice of shooting 
the messenger, there is one 
simple piece of advice that 
might help suppress our 
urge to lay the blame 
squarely at the feet of a 
frontline employee.

We can attempt to live 
by the golden rule that tells 
us we should treat others 
the way we want to be treat-
ed.

That can be as simple as 
asking ourselves a single 
question: Given a reversal 
of roles, would you want 
someone else to unfairly 
place the blame on you?

Prof Gary Martin is a 
workPlace and social 
affairs exPert witH tHe 
australian institute of 
ManaGeMent

Gas is a clean, reliable energy source. 

DAILYTELEGRAPH.COM.AU WEDnEsDAY AUGUsT 31 2022

21

V1 - TELE01Z01MA

I t makes sense to have as many runners in the renewa-bles race as possible. So ban-ning gas connections and appliances in NSW would be ignorance writ large, denying ac-cess to renewable, net-zero gas.If the disparity in energy sup-ply and demand has illustrated anything over recent months, it’s that governments should be broadening the suite of renewable energy sources at their disposal, not picking winners based on lacklustre form.
Pronouncements by the Com-mittee for Sydney to phase out gas connections and appliances within five years expose the gulf between rhetoric and reality.With coal-fired power literally shutting down around us, renew-ables like solar and wind aren’t filling the growing void. To be clear, these do generate baseload power … some of the time.

Australia’s Special Adviser on Low Emissions Technology and former chief scientist, Dr Alan Finkel, recently noted that as we move with increasing urgency to phase out reliance on coal-fired power plants and pivot toward solar and wind, natural gas will need to act as a “support role” to ensure reliable supply.“The important role for natu-ral gas is that it can ramp up very quickly, within minutes, so if the wind drops or the sun goes behind a cloud, you can run it as long as you need it,” he said. “Natural gas, helping us to ac-celerate the deployment of solar and wind, can be very important. I don’t think everybody does ap-preciate that.
“There is a pursuit of perfec-

tion to, say, get out of fossil fuels com-pletely, and eventually we will. But for the next 10, 15, 20 years, being able to call on natural gas to firm up the solar and wind electricity in a country like Australia will enable us to develop and deploy solar and wind at enor-mous scale more quickly than if we cannot call on natural gas.”Last year, all renewables combined provided 24 per cent of Australia’s en-ergy. That’s great but it means there is a 76 per cent shortfall. Most of that is coal. In the absence of gas, existing demands on electricity – let alone ballooning new expecta-tions – cannot be met.The real benefit of Australian gas is that it is decarbonising. This means households and businesses can keep using the gas appliances they know, love and rely on, without adding to the ever-increasing load expected of a future electricity system.Australian gas producers and sup-pliers can deliver 100 per cent renew-able, net-zero gas through the existing network of pipes, cylinders and tanks, with minimal changes re-quired.
In fact, by 2050 the saving from this transition to hydrogen, for exam-ple, has been modelled at half – yes, half – the rollout costs of electrifi-cation. 

According to Frontier Economics, that’s $13.3bn as opposed to a whop-ping $27.5bn.
Then there are the direct costs to households in switching to all-electric homes. 

Frontier Economics modelling shows this cost is between $21,555 and $41,430 per household, depending on type and size of dwelling and applian-ces used.
Developments in renewable, net-zero gases will achieve net-zero re-sults without the massive costs to 

homeowners and businesses in transi-tioning to electrification or to taxpay-ers in upgrading the grid to cope with massive new load requirements.Beyond hydrogen, net-zero gases like 100 per cent renewable dimethyl ether are a game-changer. This green gas is produced from food waste, agri-cultural residues and landfill. Biopro-pane and biomethane are also net-zero gases, which have the same chemical properties as, and function the same as, LPG and LNG but are 100 per cent renewable.Any ill-informed, arbitrary bid to ban gas, ignoring these developments, 

could be catastrophic. It is clear gov-ernments cannot pursue electrifi-cation as the sole means to achieve emission reduction targets.The simple reality is electrification cannot, and will not, do everything. Recent geopolitical events and natu-ral disasters should be demonstrating the importance of having a diverse energy mix to maintain secure energy systems and absorb shocks.The danger if this isn’t approached sensibly is that the prevalence of widespread, persistent and repeated blackouts will be an ongoing reality. That’s why bedding down a con-sistent, reliable supply of gas – includ-ing renewable, net-zero gases – is imperative.
Gas plays a significant role in Aus-tralia’s energy mix, with more than seven million households and busi-nesses using LPG and natural gas for their daily needs.

The gas sector is already contribu-ting to efforts to combat climate change and is well on the way to de-carbonise through renewable gases. Governments need to recognise this transition and support the devel-opment of renewable gases as part of a circular gas economy.We know consumers prefer gas for their cooking, heating and hot water. It’s also essential in manufactur-ing, where it cannot be replaced as an industrial heat source nor as an in-gredient in many of the products needed in modern life, like mobile phones, fertilisers, pharmaceuticals, plastics and rubber, to list just a few.With gas clearly needed for our en-ergy security; and gas companies al-ready in transition to renewable, net-zero gases, governments should be backing them in, not shutting them out.
Brett Heffernan is Chief Executive Officer for Gas Energy Australia.

No time to abandon gasRenewable net-zero energy sources must play a significant role in Australia’s future power mix 

The fact is that Shaq’s appearance means that people are talking about it. Shaq appeals to a whole bunch 
of people.

PM Anthony Albanese defends his Voice press conference with NBA star Shaquille O’Neal

It is insane from a national security standpoint and bad for the environment to shut them down.
Elon Musk calls for maintaining nuclear power

In the absence of gas, existing 
demands on 

electricity – let alone ballooning new expectations – cannot be met. The real benefit of Australian gas is 
that it is 

decarbonising.

 brett heffernan
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IF THE disparity in energy supply 

and demand has illustrated 

anything in recent weeks, it’s that 

governments should be broadening 

the suite of renewable energy sources 

at their disposal, not picking winners 

based on lacklustre form.

Pronouncements of phasing out 

gas and, in the case of Victoria, ruling 

out renewable gases for residential 

use, expose the gulf between rhetoric 

and reality.
With coal-fired power literally 

shutting down around us, renewables 

like solar and wind aren’t filling the 

growing void.

Just last week, Australia’s special 

adviser on low emissions technology 

and former chief scientist Dr Alan 

Finkel noted that as we moved with 

increasing urgency to phase out 

reliance on coal-fired power plants and 

pivot toward solar and wind, natural 

gas would need to act as a “support 

role” to ensure reliable supply.

“The important role for natural gas 

is that it can ramp up very quickly, 

within minutes, so if the wind drops or 

the sun goes behind a cloud ... you can 

Gas can help us make 

renewables transition
run it as long as you need it,” he told 

Bloomberg TV. “Natural gas, helping 

us to accelerate the deployment of 

solar and wind, can be very important. 

I don’t think everybody does 

appreciate that.

“There is a pursuit of perfection to 

say get out of fossil fuels completely, 

and eventually we will. But for the next 

10, 15, 20 years, being able to call on 

natural gas to firm up the solar and 

wind electricity in a country like 

Australia will enable us to develop and 

deploy solar and wind at enormous 

scale more quickly, than if we cannot 

call on natural gas.”

Last year, all renewables combined 

provided 24 per cent of Australia’s 

energy. That’s great, but it means there 

is a 76 per cent shortfall. Most of that is 

coal. In the absence of gas, existing 

demands on electricity – let alone new 

expectations – cannot be met.

The added benefit is that the 

Australian gas sector is decarbonising. 

This means households and businesses 

can keep using the gas they know, love 

and rely on, without adding to the 

ever-increasing load expected of a 

future electricity system.

Australian gas producers and 

suppliers can deliver 100 per cent 

renewable, net zero gas through the 

existing network of pipes, cylinders 

and tanks, with minimal changes 

required. In fact, by 2050 the saving 

from this transition to hydrogen, for 

example, has been modelled at half  the 

rollout costs of electrification. 

According to Frontier Economics, 

that’s $13.3bn as opposed to a 

whopping $27.5bn.

The ongoing energy crisis 

demonstrates that governments need 

to work with gas providers, not 

demonise them for a short-term PR 

bump. Embracing emerging gas 

technologies being developed right 

now is in the interests of all.

Beyond hydrogen, net zero gases, 

such as 100 per cent renewable 

dimethyl ether is a game-changer. 

This green gas is produced from 

food waste, agricultural residues and 

landfill. Biopropane and biomethane 

are also net zero gases, which have the 

same chemical properties and function 

the same as LPG and LNG, but are 100 

per cent renewable.

Any arbitrary bid to sideline gas, 

ignoring these developments, could be 

catastrophic. Which brings us to 

Victoria’s so-called Gas Substitution 

Roadmap. Denying Victorians access 

to these new gases is a clear lost 

opportunity. But it also means 

switching in-home appliances from 

gas to electricity. 

That cost is entirely borne by 

homeowners. Recent Frontier 

Economics data shows the cost of this 

is between $21,500 and $42,000 per 

dwelling – depending on type and size 

dwelling and appliances used.

All this for a less reliable power 

source. Just last month in South 

Australia, where the state relies on 

renewables such as solar and wind, gas 

was the only thing preventing multiple 

days of blackouts. That reliable back-up 

will be more important than ever in a 

decarbonising economy.

What is clear is governments 

cannot pursue electrification as the 

sole means to achieve emission 

reduction targets. The simple reality is 

electrification cannot, and will not, do 

everything.  Gas plays a significant role 

in Australia’s energy mix, with more 

than seven million households and 

businesses using LPG and natural gas 

for their daily needs.

We know consumers prefer gas for 

their cooking, heating and hot water. 

It’s also essential in manufacturing. 

With gas clearly needed for our energy 

security; and gas companies already in 

transition to renewable, net zero gases; 

governments should be backing them 

in, not shutting them out.
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Looking back
10 YEARS AGO
Queensland’s biggest electricity 

retailer wants the Newman 

Government to get out of the 

business of setting power prices 

and allow the market to deliver 

better deals for consumers. 

Origin Energy  said Queensland 

should follow Victoria’s lead and 

totally deregulate the industry.

20 YEARS AGO
Burial vaults and chapels at a 

Brisbane cemetery were sold 

two and three times to different 

buyers in a fraudulent scam that 

has incensed dozens of families. 

At least two families discovered 

paid-for burial sites were not 

theirs as they grieved over 

loved ones.

70 YEARS AGO
Four more Brisbane City Council 

officers and 100 outside staff 

have been given dismissal 

notices. They are all in the 

Electricity Department. Two 

high-salaried officers and two 

professional assistants – whose 

salaries range from £1276 to 

£800 a year –  are involved. 

THoUgHT 
FoR THE DaY
A nation should not 

be judged by how it 

treats its highest 

citizens, but it’s 

lowest ones. 
— Nelson Mandela
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AUSTRALIAN weightlifter Damon Kelly requires 

plenty of fire to propel his massive lifts, powered 

by a mammoth diet that includes up to 2kg of 

steak, 21 bananas, 14 tubs of yoghurt, two cartons 

of eggs and seven cans of baked beans a week.
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Here’s what you need 
to fuel a true Olympian

Push for open market on price after top retailer’s electric U-turn

POWER GRAB
Steven Wardill

STATE POLITICAL EDITOR

QUEENSLAND’S biggest elec-

tricity retailer wants the

Newman Government to get

out of the business of setting

power prices and allow the

market to deliver better deals

for consumers.
After a massive backdown on

a planned power price rise,

Origin Energy yesterday said

Queensland should follow

Victoria’s lead and completely

deregulate the industry
.

The push for a deregulated

market could be considered by

the Newman Government as

part of a 30-year electri
city plan

for the state.
While the push to remove

the government-regulated rate

will provoke fears of massive

price spikes, Victorian con-

sumers currently pay less or

about the same as their

Queensland counterparts.

Origin’s decision to reduce

planned price increases for

market-contract customers to

the capped rate set by the

Newman Government will save

thousands of household
s about

$100 a quarter.
But Queensland taxpayers

will effectively be subsidising

their own power bills under the

policy because the Newman

Government would reimburse

retailers for the cost difference

of the price cap on the standard

household tariff.
Victorian Energy Minister

Michael O’Brien has slammed

his state counterparts o
ver such

price caps, insisting they are a

double-edged sword.

‘‘They may keep costs down

temporarily but they don’t

promote efficient investment

and inevitably when you sup-

press prices down artificially

there is a catch-up,’’ he
said.

Origin corporate affairs gen-

eral manager Phil Craig yester-

day said the company would

like the same deregulated mar-

ket in Queensland that was

open in Victoria.

‘‘Our philosophy is that we

would like to have a deregu-

lated market,’’ he said.

While only a handful of

retailers now operate in

southeast Queensland, Mr

Craig said there were 14 regis-

tered in Victoria.
‘‘The Victorian market has

been open now for 12 years,’’

he said.
Continued » P2
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RE/MAX Central Properties

Outstanding Agents.

Outstanding Results.

on Goodwin

Studios from $199,000

1 bedroom apartments from $257,000

2 bedroom apartments from $350,000

Many apartments include excellent views to

Brisbane River and CBD

The images and illustrations used in this advertisement are for presentation purposes only and are
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The Docks at Kangaroo Point

The perfect 2 bedroom apartment 

to live in or invest
Stage 1 completes Oct 2002

Stage 2 completes March 2003

The Docks Apartments, 

Goodwin Street, Kangaroo Point,

Ph: (07) 3392 3866
Open daily 11am - 4pm

Burial fraud on families
Wayne Smith

VERA Scandurra, at rear, discovered that the burial site she bought in advance for her parents, Giuseppe and Giuseppa Scandurra, had already been sold to someone else.

Archbishop Bathersby‘I’m enormously embarrassed by the whole

thing and I think it is particularly offensive’

BURIAL vaults and chapels

at a Brisbane cemetery were

sold two and three times to

different buyers in a fraudu-

lent scam that has incensed

dozens of families.

At least two families dis-

covered paid-for burial sites

were not theirs as they

grieved over loved ones.

As many as 62 families

have been hit by the fraud,

which is understood to have

been linked to the gambling

problem of the spouse of a

cemetery employee sacked

earlier this year.

The scandal at Nudgee

Cemetery will cost Brisbane’s

Catholic archdiocese up to

$300,000 to rectify.

The scheme ran from 1999

until it was discovered in

February when two families

found they each owned the

same burial vault. It is now

the subject of separate police

and bank investigations.

Archbishop John Bath-

ersby last week wrote letters

of apology to all those who

learned they would be unable

to bury their relatives in the

places they had selected.

‘‘I’m enormously embar-

rassed by the whole thing

and I think it is particularly

offensive that families that

are planning for an ex-

tremely sensitive time should

be burdened by this type of

deception,’’ he said.

No bodies at Nudgee have

had to be moved and it is

understood that of all the

families caught up in the

scam, only two were grieving

over recent deaths when

alerted to the problem.

The archdiocese has of-

fered replacement vaults and

chapels to all those whose

sites were sold improperly.

The archbishop stressed

no one who has paid or partly

paid for a vault or chapel

would lose their money.

Disputed burial sites will be

allocated to the original

buyer. Second and third

buyers of the same site will be

given a range of other sites to

choose from.

Archbishop Bathersby said

the value of the sites was

about $600,000 but arch-

diocese property manager

Des Zagami said some losses

had been recovered and the

cost to the archdiocese would

be about half this figure.

‘‘Whatever the figure, it

will be a significant amount

of money,’’ Archbishop

Bathersby said. ‘‘We run a

tight budget and we just

can’t afford to lose that type

of money.’’

The Catholic Church is al-

ready facing substantial

compensation pay-outs to

the victims of child sexual

abuse in its institutions, so

this latest scandal could not

have come at a worse time for

the archdiocese.

Mr Zagami said families

caught up in the fraud had

been ‘‘angry and emotionally

upset’’ when told that the

vault or chapel they had

selected actually belonged to

someone else.

‘‘By the time we’ve sat

down and offered alterna-

tives . . . I won’t say we’ll

make them happy,’’ he said.

‘‘But at least they all

realise that we’ve done

everything possible to

rectify the situation.’’

It appears the fraudulent

scheme involved nothing

more complicated than pro-

viding second and third ‘‘pur-

chasers’’ with unauthorised

receipts, while copies of all

legitimate original sales were

sent to the archdiocese.

Following an independent

audit of the cemetery’s books

and administrative pro-

cedures, the church decided

that the records of ownership

of all chapels, vaults and indi-

vidual resting places would in

future be held on the central

archdiocesan computer.

Buyers of Nudgee Cem-

etery burial sites will be given

certificates of entitlement,

not just a receipt.

Archbishop Bathersby

said: ‘‘(We) had people in pos-

itions of trustwhere they

were handling money. You

think all is going well, you

think adequate checks and

balances are in place and

then you find they’re not.’’

Tilt-train speed costs $25m an hour
Chris Jones

QUEENSLANDERS have

paid the equivalent of

$25 million for every hour a

new high-speed diesel tilt

train will save on the trip be-

tween Brisbane and Cairns.

Transport Minister Steve

Bredhauer last night con-

firmed the State Govern-

ment’s tilt train would take

26.5 hours to travel to Cairns

— a saving of only 5.5 hours

on the Sunlander service.

Opposition transport

s p o k e s m a n V a u g h a n

Johnson seized on the ap-

parent lack of time savings

and noted that Labor had

promised a 21-hour journey

when it was in Opposition.

But Mr Bredhauer said

travel time was only one fea-

ture of the $138 million tilt

train, which he expected

would be highly successful

and would provide a range of

flow-on benefits to com-

munities along the route.

‘‘This will be significantly

different from any of our

other TravelTrain services,’’

he said. ‘‘We will have airline

style seating and in-seat

audio and visual entertain-

ment — it’s a luxury service.’’

The diesel train will travel

at up to 100km/h between

Rockhampton and Cairns.

An electric version of the

tilt train now runs between

Brisbane and Rockhampton.

Mr Bredhauer said the

government would consult

the public before the service

began in May or June next

year to set timetables and

scheduled stops.

But Mr Johnson said it

was now clear that poor cost-

ing had led to a significant

loss in the tilt train’s most

touted benefit — speed.

Continued, Page 2

Another
setback
for HRT
Siobhain Ryan

THE bad news on hormone

replacement therapy is now

worse, with a new US study

identifying more links be-

tween HRT and cancer.

Last week, a study found

women on estrogen-plus-

progestin HRT medicines

were at higher risk of breast

cancer, cardiovascular heart

disease, blood clots and

strokes than non-users.

But the jury on estrogen-

only therapies — part of the

same trial — was still out.

This week’s research from

the National Cancer Institute

in the US returned part of the

verdict. It found women on

estrogen-only HRT were at

‘‘significantly increased risk

of ovarian cancer’’, particu-

larly after 10 years or more.

From a sample of more than

44,000 postmenopausal women,

the researchers found 329 who

developed ovarian cancer and

calculated the risk of the dis-

ease rose 7 per cent each year

of estrogen-only HRT use.

In Australia, usually only

women who have had hyster-

ectomies take this form, be-

cause of long-standing links to

cancer of the endometrium.

Cancer Council Australia

chief executive officer Alan

Coates said that, unlike in the

US, ‘‘there isn’t a huge number

. . . taking estrogen-only re-

placement therapy’’. ‘‘The

most common treatment in

this country for some time now

has been combined estrogen/

progestin therapy,’’ he said.

Professor Coates said that

in the past the risks of

ovarian cancer related to

HRT had never been clear

and the effects, if any, of com-

bined HRT on ovarian cancer

rates were still unknown, de-

spite the institute research.

But the study had shown

women on oestrogen-only

HRT had higher odds of the

disease, even though the ab-

solute risk was still small.

He said the recent studies

clearly showed HRT was gen-

erally best as a short-term

postmenopausal treatment; if

longer-term use seemed ap-

propriate, individual women

must decide in consultation

with their doctors and the risks

must be seriously considered.

Bad planning
Thorpedoed
A PROTEST by multiple

world record holder Ian

Thorpe has forced Common-

wealth Games organisers to

organise blood testing of

swimmers at the Games,

which begin in seven days.

Until last night, organisers

were unaware FINA had

made it mandatory to blood

test world record-breakers.

Blood testing will now occur

at the pool.
Full report, Page 40

• Victims allege they contacted 

Nudgee cemetery seeking to 

buy burial vaults and chapels at 

the historic cemetery.

• After selecting a site, they 

were quoted a price, paid by 

cheque and were given an 

official Nudgee cemetery 

receipt.

• They later discovered other 

victims also held receipts for the 

same plot.

• An audit allegedly revealed 

unauthorised receipts had been 

handed out.

• The Catholic Church has since 

centralised records of sales and 

ownership of all chapels, vaults 

and individual resting places.

• Anyone concerned about their 

burial rights at Nudgee should 

call 07 3267 5215 between 9am 

and 4.30pm on weekdays.

HOW IT WORKED

THE PACE OF PROGRESS

Brisbane to Cairns by rail:

The Sunlander 32 hours

Tilt train (actual time) 26½ hours

Tilt train (promised time) 21 hours

Scam casts long shadow
VERA Scandurra had

always hoped her parents

would have a place in the sun

when their time came.

‘‘It sounds a bit silly doesn’t

it?’’ Ms Scandurra said. ‘‘But

we chose the beds because

they were on the sunny side.’’

However, alleged shady

dealings at Nudgee Cemetery

have now cast a shadow over

the ownership of vaults she

purchased in advance for her

parents two years ago.

The first inklings of a

problem surfaced four months

ago, when rumours began

circulating that burial plots

and vaults were being

‘‘double-booked’’ at Nudgee.

‘‘I heard that some Italian

people, when it came time to

bury their family, they found

that there was someone in

there,’’ Ms Scandurra said

yesterday.

She contacted the Catholic

Church and had been

stunned when it confirmed

that a cemetery staff

member had been double-

and triple-selling sites —

allegedly pocketing

thousands in profits.

Her parents’ vault was one

of those sold several times

over. ‘‘I was quite shocked to

think people could be taking

advantage,’’ she said.

To their credit, Ms

Scandurra said the church

had acted swiftly to arrange

new sites for those affected,

although she would prefer the

original sundrenched plot.

Marc Pinter said his family

had also bought a crypt at

Nudgee — but literally

stumbled across evidence it

had been sold to someone else.

‘‘Lo and behold, one day we

were walking past (the crypt)

and we saw it was occupied,’’

Mr Pinter said yesterday.

As the church had no record

of fraudulent sales, he said

the true number of victims

would not be known until all

sales had been re-verified.

‘‘I don’t think the extent of

this has yet been realised,’’

he said.

Catriona Mathewson

National Library of Australia

http://nla.gov.au/nla.news-page2035788
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HIT MANCHURIA?

U.S. Navy has

order 'ready'
AUSTRALIAN ASSOCIATED PRESS

TOKIO, July 17.— The Allied Far East Supreme

Commander (General Mark Clark) has been

authorised to order 'naval operations against

the Manchurian coast in certain circum

stances.77

Stating this to-day, the United States Navy

Chief-of-Staff (Admiral William Fechteler) de

clined to specify what circumstances would justify

such operations. ?

Mamirai recnreier, who is visiting

Japan, said the American Navy now

had 'two or three' jet planes for

carriers which were 'as good or better

than the Communist MIG-15's.'

Questioned on the broader Far Eastern

picture, Admiral Fechteler said 'it would be

difficult to over-estimate the importance or

significance' of the Chinese Nationalist

island stronghold of Formosa.

Meanwhile, rumours that a Korean

armistice is 'just around the corner' are

being taken seriously by Japanese business

men.

According to Tokio

newspaper reports, firms

whose business would be

cut by a Korean peace

are trying to lighten

stockpiles.
One firm, according to the

Asahi newspaper was act

ing on private cabled in

formation from London that

Indian intervention would

end the Korean war 'within

two weeks.'

Stocks slump
Asahi quoted leading

businessmen as saying they

felt it unwise to keep high
stocks of goods connected

with the Korean war and ac

cordingly were trying to un

joad or at least curtail buy

ing. Contractors who hoped
to take part in the rebuild

ing of peacetime South

Korea had become more

active.
The Japanese stock and

money markets to-day
started a definite recession

as a result of peace

rumours.

Japanese reaction to world

events often has been ac

curate, but there was no

official basis to-day for the

apparently widespread belief

that an armistice would

come soon.

'Feeble' hope
In Washington, the U.S.

Secretary of State (Mr.

Acheson) said he hoped

that the Peking radio an

nouncement that Com

munist China would recog

nise the Geneva treaties on

germ and gas warfare and

the treatment of war pri

soners might be a forward

step towards a truce.

But, Mr. Acheson added,

his hopes were 'rather

feeble.'
He said that the Chinese

Communist Government had

promised to abide by those

treaties when it first entered

the Korean war. Provisions

had not been adhered to.

P.O.W. request
Meanwhile, the United

Nations command to-day

asked the Communists to

account for 1881 missing

Allied soldiers believed to be

prisoners-of-war.
It was slated that ef

forts made since last De

cember to obtain informa

tion about the missing
men had brought either

no reply or an accounting
which the Allies described

as 'totally unsatisfactory.'

The request was made at

a meeting of liaison officers

at Pan Mun Jon, called by

the United Nations.

The regular truce negotia

tion sessions are n

in lecess until to- ^P
moi i o\\

^^
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SKYROCKETED.BUT

Didn 't

notice
1238

T OS ANGELES, July
U 17 (A.A.P.). — A

man flying at 1238

m.p.h. was not especi

ally conscious of the

speed.
The man. Douglas test pilot

Bill Bridgeman, who

reached the speed in a

D558-2 Skyrocket last

August, said :

'You notice the high speed

only when you make a

mistake. Then she really

jumps and gets hard to

control.

'Generally, though, there is

not too much blue sky and

so many things to do that

the speed is not notice

able.'

It's official
The speed record - earlier

estimated at 1300 m.p.h.)

and an altitude record of

79.494 feet were officially

credited to the Skyrocket

to-day.
The aircraft, in normal use,

is powered by both jet and

rocket engines. But for

the record-breaking tests

the jet engine was re

moved and replaced with

tanks, doubling the fuel

capacity for the rockets.

BricJgeman said : 'When

the last of the four rackets

loses its thrust your stom

ach goes into your shoes

'Then you have to bend her

over fast, level off, and

start gliding for home.'

He added that heat, and

not the sonic barrier, was

now the main problem.

Dies after

city brawl
A Tasmanian seaman

died late last night from

injuries received in a city

brawl on Tuesday niahr.

He was Barel Vineux, of

the coastal freighter Cor

amba.
Detectives have increased

their hunt for a man who

was reported to have been

seen grappling with Virieux

in Mary Street.

Doctors fought for 36

hours to save Virieux's life.

He died from severe head

injuries.
Several men told police he

collapsed on the street after

a brawl. Another man ran

off towards the citv.

U.S. air crash
LOS ANGELES, July 17

(A.A.P.).— A private fouf

passenger plane crashed

into three houses near the

main Los Angeles airport

to-day. Police said they had

been told that three people
wpi-p killed and four in

jured.

£500 Damages
MELBOURNE, Thursday.

— Leading trotting driver

Albert Gath, of Ascot Vale,

was ordered in the Surjreme

Uourt to-day to pay £500

damages to Richard Poskett

Whitcroft, 45, of Essendpn,
who alleged that he was in

jured in August, 1950, when

a trotting sulky driven by

Gath struck ladders sup

porting a plank on which

he was painting a sign at

the showgrounds.

Britain 'untidy1
LONDON, July 17 (A.A.P.).

—Foreign visitors did not

find Britain a particularly

clean or tidy country, tourist

promotion chief, Sir Alex

ander Maxwell, complained
at the annual meeting of

the British Travel and Holi

days' Association yesterday.

To-morrow
QJ\E man against the

might of Nazi Europe
— that is the epic tale of

'The White Rabbit,' a

story of unbciieveablc

bravery, told in tomor

row's feature page.

. . . and guest writer

Alan Moorehead, continu

ing his rediscovery, of Aus

tralia, describes the deso

lation of our north. 'It's

been looted for 100 years,'

he says.
Make sure of Saturday's

Courier-Mail for good

reading.
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Bulging walls may block traffic

TWOBUILDINGS GO IN

£200,000 N.S.W. BLAZE
CfDNEY, Thursday.— Sixty firemen fought

*^ a £200,000 city fire for about .seven

hours to-day.

Two buildings, both

in jjower ueorge btreet m

the centre of the city,

were destroyed.
Their brick walls bulged

outwards as they became red

hot, and police feared late

to-night that they might

collapse into the street.

Traffic along this sec

tion of George Street is ex

pected to be banned until

the walls can be de

molished.

Cars damaged
The two buildings one

four stories high' and the

other three stories— were

owned by Harrington Prop

erties, Ltd.
One was occupied by Scan

drett Browne and Co., im

porters
and toy distribu

tors, and the other by P. R.

Strange, Pty., Ltd., auc

tioneers, and Herman Haage,

Pty.. Ltd., paper suppliers.

The fire began at lunch

time, and police had to

keep thousands of sight

seers at a safe distance as

sparks and hot glass

showered into the street,

damaging a number of

parked cars.

Floors collapse
The cause of the fire is not

known. It was noticed by

an employee returning from

lunch, but spread rapidly

before firemen could control

it.
Men who left the building

said the flames spread in a

few minutes, and soon both

buildings were blazing.

Floors inside the buildings

collapsed, and firemen had

to man 100ft. extension lad

ders to pour thousands m

of gallons of water into .?,
the buildings.

'^r

£3000 IN BRISBANE S 2nd.

SHOE FIRE IN 2 DAYS

WITHIN two days two soutiiside shoe factories

have been damaged by fire in Brisbane.

A second fire which began

about 7 p.m. yesterday
caused nearly £3000 damage

to the Hume shoe factory

in Cordelia Street, South

Brisbane.
Firemen were blinded by

dense smoke but; prevented

flames spreading to a near

by block of flats.

Most of the factory's

stock was destroyed
within 20 minutes.

Five engines from head

quarters and South Bris

bane attended the fire.

At 10.45 a.m. on Wednes

day, fire caused £2000 dam

age to the factory of C.

Dixon and Sons, Ltd.,. in

Montague Road, Hill End.

AUSTKAUA'S sprint

hope, Murjwrii- Jackson,

li'uiuing
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truck at Olympic village,

Helsinki, on Wednesday.
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Oarsman hurt
HELSINKI, July 17

(A.A.P.).— Oarsman M. Fin

lay of the crack Australian

rowing eight has cracked

a rib and was unable to

train to-day. His position

was taken by V. Middleton,

the reserve.

All China in

HELSINKI, July 17

(A.AP.).— The International

Olympic Committee decided

by 33 votes to 20 to-day to

admit to the Olympic Games

all
' Chinese athletes

whether from Nationalist

or Communist China.

Olympic draw— Sports

Supplement
'

CROSSING SMASH

Saved by
inches

A MOTOR cyclist

watched the wheels

of a traiii pass within

inches of his head last

night.
He ha' been involved in

a level crossing smash in

Eagle Farm Road, Whin

stanes, at 6.20 p.m., and

was unable to move. His

only injury was a badly cut

knee.
The cyclist, John Drain,

19, single, of London Road,

Clayfield, told police he did

not see the train until he

was a few feet away.

His motor cycle and

the train, travelling from

the Hamilton Cold Stores,

collided head-on.

Second victim
He was the second motor

cyclist involved in an acci

dent at the Whinstanes

crossing this year.
Police claimed last night

that no automatic signals

were provided, and the

crossing was badly lit.

The previous victim, Rich

ard Frederick Reading, 17, of

Wentworth Parade, Bal

moral, lost his right leg in

a similar crash on January

'Don't squeeze
Britain now'
WELLINGTON (N.Z.),

Thursday.— The Prime Min

ister (Mr. Hodland) said in

an international affairs de

Dace in tne House of Repre

sentatives to-day: 'This is

not the time to try to squeeze

the last ounce of blood out

of Britain. If Britain falls

we will sink.'
This is taken to refer to

a view expressed earlier in

the debate that New Zealand

should drive the hardest pos

sible bargain with Britain in

meat price talks.

Wed in London
LONDON, July 17 (Spe

cial).— Lady Margaret Stew

art, 42, daughter of the

Dowager Marchioness of

Londonderry, who has

worked as a reporter for

a Sydney newspaper, will

marry film actor-playwright,

Hugh Falkus, 35, in London

to-morrow.

Bitten by snake
MURW ILLUMBAH,

Thursday. Mrs. Daphne

Logan, 24, of Clothier's

Creek, near Murwillumbah,
was admitted to Tweed Dis

trict Hospital to-day after

she had been bitten by a

brown snake.

Tax refund to nearly 80,000 soon

MEARLY 80,000 Queens-
*^ land taxpayers have

lodged tax returns so far.

The Deputy Taxation

Commissioner (Mr. P. G.

Johnston) said last night

that almost all would re

ceive refunds.
.Those entitled to refunds

would have them by the end

3f August if they lodged

their returns by to-day.

Those who left their re

turn until after to-day

would be caught among the

many thousands yet to be

sent in.

Filling-in
of forms had

improved, but a small sec

tion of people still failed to

attach group certificates or

stamp sheets.

Form S (employees') re

turns must be lodged by

July 31. August 31 is the

deadline for people in busi

nesses, trades, professions,

and for companies.

WON RIGHT-WING

UNION SUPPORT

'Robbie'

defies

hooters
CYDNEY, Thurs

?J day. — The Re

cruiting Director

General (Lieut.-

Generul Sir Horace j

Robertson) defied j

tive minutes' hooting ]

and shouting to-

night.
He had just repeated to i

the New South Wales |

Trades and Labour. Coun

cil his charge that half a

million young Australians

were shirkers.

Throughout the rowdy meet

ing the left-wing section

constantly interrupted with

shouted questions r.nd in

terjections.
The right-wing .side :houted

down nearly all oi these

interruptions.

'Fine Australian'
After Sir Horaci- had

spoken the Trade.-; and

Labour Council pi esident

i Mr. Shortell') said he was

a. great Australian, and

whether delegates agreed

with what he said was beside

the point.
General Robertson ad

dressed the council by in

vitation. Left- wins delegates

had demanded that he be

asked to explain what they

called a slander on thu Aus

tralian workers.

At the end of his address

he repeated that the half

million men between 10 and

26 who had no military

training were shirking if

they failed now to get it, be

cause they would have to

fight if there was another

war.

Noisy climax
The noise reached a

climax in the last 20 min

utes when General Robert

son had finished speaking

and invited questions which

were poured at him.

The questions nea]y all

were from the left-wing,

with the right-wing

mainly cheering the

answers.

General Robertson said

the slaughter in Korea had

been ruthless.

He said the Chinese had

been rotating their armies

for experience, and now had

live million trained soldiers

under arms.

When he held up a map

showing a solid block of

Communist countries in

rpri. r.ontinuous unroar

followed.
While the chairman tried

lo restore order, left-wing

delegates were on their feet

shouting questions.

One right-winger rushed

across the hall shouting

threats and was dragged

back to his seat by the

council's assistant secretary

(Mr. J. Kenny*.

Ban lifted
SYDNEY, Thursday. A

3an against a naval officer

iddressing children in New

South Wales State schools

;o-day was lifted after a

:onference between the

Sducation minister -Mr. R.

J. Heffroni and the Re

cruiting Director General

'Lieut-General Sir Horace

Robertson).

2 SHOTS AT

STOLEN CAR
MELBOURNE, Thursday.

A constable fired two

shots at- a stolen car in

which three men tried to

run mm down at vrarragul,

61 miles south-east of

Melbourne, to-day.

Constable Harrow saw the

2ar about 3 a.m. and

ivatched it for several

minutes.
Three men were loitering

near by and he challenged

them. They jumped into

the car and drove it toward

him. He shouted to them

to stop, and then fired.

Found harmed
Pranas Pocius, 35 singla.

was. found hanging from a

rafter in a Melbourne Street

South Brisbane, boarding

house at 6.30 a.m. yesterday.

Police said there were no

suspicious circumstances.

Paints princess
LONDON. July 17

(A.A.P.). Princess Anne is

having her portrait painted

by Australian-born Mrs.

Stella Marks in a series of

short sittings at Buckingham
Palace.

60 See 'saucers'
NEW YORK, . July 17

(A.A.P.).— A U.S. Air Force

spokesman said to-day that

about 60 reports of 'flying

saucers' had been received

In the last two weeks.

Australian woman saw . . .

VERY TIRED,
PALE QUEEN

From. Our Lnndan Stuff mid A.A.P.

I ONDON, July 17.-The Queen looks

™

very tired and pale, according to

an Australian woman presented to her

last night:

The woman, who is

the wife of a- senior

Australia House

official, was presented

at a Buckingham

Palace reception to the

Diplomatic Corps.

She said: 'The Queen

and the Duke of Edin

burgh were both cheer

ful, but obviously very

tired. We were all ad

vised that an attempt

wa.s being made to rest

her.
'Guests were intro

duced to her according to

custom, but there was

less gaiety than I believe

there Is normally.
'There was no dancing,

and the Queen and the

Duke retired at 11.30

p.m., when the reception,

of course, ended.'

It wa.s the Queen's

first public appearance

since Tuesday morning,

when she wa.s forced to

miss the wedding of her

cousin, Gerald Lascelles,

because of a chill.

ItltllJIAYi

The reception wa.s the

most brilliant she has

given since coming to the

throne.
The guests and their

wives— more than 1000

were introduced in the

beautiful white and gold

State ballroom, and had

supper in the Palace

ceremonial dining-room.

The Queen wore an

evening gown of ivory

satin embroidered with

L. ?old and the kingfisher
= blue sash of the Order of

I the Garter.

I The Duke and Duchess

I of Gloucester. the

I Duchess of Kent, the

I Princess Royal, and
*

other members of the

= Royal family also at

|
tended. --?-,

|
'IV© CONCERN'

i Earlier yesterday,
the

% first- news of the Queen's

I health came from the

~= Duke of Edinburgh, who

s gave the toast of 'The

= Queen' for the first time

I in public.

| He followed his toast

I at an Automobile As

auUU'LJUll iUUUlJ 111 UUI1- =

don with this smiling I

assurance:
i

'There is no cause for i

concern about Her =

Majesty's health. |

'She is up again, and it [

'

was only a temporary j

and rather violent dis- j

turbance yesterday.' i

Persian

Premier

resigns
TEHERAN, July 17

1 (A.A.P.). -r- The

Persian Premier (Dr.

Mossiulea) has resigned

suddenly after a dis

pute with the Shah.

Parliament met to-day to

choose a successor.

The resignation
was an

nounced at a closed session

of Parliament by the Court

Minister - Hussein Ala), rep

resenting thte Shah.

One Deputy said the mes

sage from the palace dis

closed that the 72-year-old

Premier resigned last night

after the Shah had refused

to agree to his becoming

War Minister as well as

Premier in the new Govern

ment.

Was surprise
The dispute s-.pparently oc

cured during a conference

between Dr. Mossadeq and

the Shah yesterday.

Dr. Mossadeq sent his let

ter of resignation
last night,

apparently without inform

ing i.ome of his closest

supporters. Several Deputies

arriving for the meeting of

the Majlis expressed surprise

when informed of the resig

nation.
Squads of police and

soldiers patrolled the Parlia

ment area as well as strat

egic spots throughout the

city, but there were no

reports of any disorders.

P.O. profit
is tipped
CANBERRA, Thursday.

— The PostmasterGen

eral's Department would

show an actual profit for

the financial year ended

June 30 last, the Post

master General (Mr.

Anthony) said to-day.

Mr. Anthony said that it,

had been assumed in some

quarters based on Common

wealth Treasury figures that

the department had made a

loss of almost E5 million

during the year.

In the commercial ac

counts of the Post Office

:redit was taken by the de

jartment for work performed

for other Commonwealth

departments which did not

pay in cash as well as for

income earned during the

year. This had not been col

lected by June 30.

The commercial accounts

also excluded overhead asso

ciated with capital work and

money spent on capital

equipment.

WANTED MAN MAY

CHANGE HOSPITAL

CYDNEY, Thursday. — A man whom Bris

bane police have questioned about the

Sourhport taxi murder may be moved from a

Svdnev hosrjiral soon.
lie is still in the i'arra

matta Hospital under

armed police guard but

may be taken to the Long

Bay Jail Hospital within a

few weeks.

Sydney police have

charged him with shooting
with intent to murder in

New South Wales.
Police said to-night that

so far no action had been

taken to extradite the man

to Brisbane. This would be

a matter for the Queensland

and New South Wales Crown

Law authorities.

'Not in danger''
Hospital authorities said

to-day the man was re

covering and was in no

danger.
He has been treated for a

thigh bone fracture, alleged

to have been caused by a

bullet in a struggle.
Two detectives recently

visited New South Wales to

continue inquiries into the

murder of taximan Athol

McCowan, 23, at Southport

on May 23.

Eva worse?
BUENOS AIRES, July 17

(A.A.P.).— A report on the

health of Senora Eva Peron

was not included in the

latest official news bulletin,

increasing indication that

the condition or the wife of

President Peron, of Argen

tina is becoming more

serious.

Comfort first

LONDON, July 17 (Spe

cial). Prance has a liner,

the new 20,000-ton Plandre,

to compete with Britain's

Queens and America's Uni

ted States— but in comfort

rather than speed. The ship

will begin its maiden Atlan

tic voyage from Le Havre

next Wednesday.

Taf t's Democrat

tip-TRUMAN
CHICAGO, July 17 (A.A.P.) .— Sen-

** aror Robert Taffr, defeated Re

publican Presidential nominee, pre;

dieted last niaht that the Democrats

would nominate President Truman

again.
The Democratic nomi

nating convention be

gins in Chicago next

Monday.
Speaking in Washington,

Senator Taft said he always

had felt that in the end the

Democrats would turn to

Mr. Truman.
He added that he expected

the Democrats to decide

that various weaknesses

ruled out all the others in

the big field of contenders

for the Democratic nomina

tion.

Medical tests
Meanwhile, Mr. Truman

to-day patiently submitted

to a series of medical tests,

while Mrs. Truman hurried

to his hospital bedside from

Missouri.
The Presidential secre

tary (Mr. Joseph Short)

said that Mr. Truman was

improving steadily.

Mr. Short said that the

President had been admitted

to the Walter Reed Hospital

merely for a general check

up. He should be able to

leave in a couple of days.

It is the G8-year-old Pre

sident's first time in hospital

since he entered the White

House in April. 1945.

'No betrayal'
Last night President Tru

man warned delegates to

the Democratic convention

that 'there must be no be

trayal of the New Deal and

the Pair Deal.'

The President's message

was released by the Demo

cratic National Committee

in Chicago.
Mr. Truman referred to

the coming campaign as

one of historic import
ance and asserted that

the decisions of the con

vention itself would de

cide whether the free

world continued to march

i forward on the road to

permanent peace.
'There must be no turn

ing back or faltering on the

ereat course that our party

has pioneered,' he said.

There first
Senator Estes Kefauver, of

Tennessee, and Senator

Richard Russell, of Georgia,

two leading candidates for

the Democratic nomination,

arrived in Chicago yester

day.
The latest tabulation of

known delegate strength

listed 267 for Senator

Kefauver, 117 for Senator

Russell, and 113 for Mr.

Averell Harriman.

It will take 616 votes to

win the nomination.

6/ Basic rise?
MELBOURNE, Thursday.

—Some quarters believe that

the Basic wage rises for

Brisbane, to be announced

to-morrow, will be 6/ for

males and 4/ for females.

Another 104
dismissed

from Council
FOUR more City Council officers

and 100 outside staff have been

given dismissal notices.

They are all in the Electricity Depart

ment.
Two high-salaried

officers and two pro

fessional assistants — whose salaries range

frnm €1 27fi -o €800 a vpar nro invnlvi-rL

The Lord Mayor. (Aid.

Roberts) said last night

that council dismissals

were made by administra

tive officers in charge of

departments in accordance

with the council policy of

economy and increased ef

ficiency.
The Transport and Elec

tricity Committee chairman

(Aid. Coutts) said the dis

missals were left entirely to

the management of depart

ments.
There were no political

implications, he said.

'Reduce services'
The latest dismissals are

in addition to the following

which were announced pre

viously: 12 leading adminis

trative and technical of

ficers in the Works and

Planning and Building De

partments; 400 outside staff

the Works Department;

and 125 employees over 65

years of age.
Aid. Coutts said the dis

missals would reduce services

to housing estates and

new homes.
If more funds were avail

able through the city loans,

he felt that the staff would

be built up again.

Quarry probe
Yesterday's meeting of

the Finance Committee was

adjourned until to-day so

that Aid. Roberts could in

vestigate complaints of vic

timisation in 12 dismissals

at the Ekibin quarry.
He said later he found

that one man who had

been employed for 10

weeks had been retained,

while others employed for

years had been given

notice.
He had instructed that if

any injustice had been done,

it should be remedied im

mediately.
The task of determining

who was to be dismissed

from the council's outside

staff had been left to its

officers and foremen.

Rain, but

clearing
THE Weather Bureau

expects rain to-day,

, but a fine week-end.

The Deputy Director (Mr

a. j. snieias) saici yester

day the rain would come

from a broad trough extend

ing slowly eastward across

the State.
There would be clearing

showers to-morrow morning,

with cool south-westerly to

southerly winds in the after

noon.

He added: 'The week-end

should be fine, but cooler

than the last few days.'

Steady rain fell over south

western Queensland and the

Southern Downs yesterday.

Maximum temperature in

Brisbane was 73.5deg. at 3

p.m.

Seekinq cyclist
Mrs. May Ritchie, 56. of

Victoria Park Housing

Camp, received leg lacera

tions when a motor evele

knocked ner down in uiven

Terrace, Paddington, at 6.30

last night. An ambulance

took her to the General

Hospital.
Police are searching for

the cyclist, who, it was

claimed, stopped, spoke to

Mrs. Ritchie, and then rode

away.

3 Iniured
Three people were injured

in a head-on collision be

tween two cars in Main

Street. KanKaroo Point, at

n.du lasi nignt..

They are: James Baldwin,

36, married, of Milton Street.

Chermside, concussion and

abrasions; Lionel Brennan,

46, married, of Marquis

Street. Annerley, lacerations

and abrasions; Noel 'Wilson,

20, single, of Lloyd Street.

Coorparoo, lacerations and

leg injuries.
Ambulance men took them

to the General Hospital.
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slogan for General Eisen

hower was '1 like Ike.'

At (lie final session of llie

Chicago Convention, nl

which lie was chosen as

Republican Presidential

candidate, llie General's

lapel answered: '/ like

Everybody.'

W INNING cuinptiign

slogan for General Eisen

hower was '1 like Ike.'

At (lie final session of llie

Chicago Convention, nl

which lie was chosen as

Republican Presidential

candidate, llie General's

lapel answered: '/ like

Everybody.'

Aust. save

in London
From Our London Staff

LONDON. July 17. — Con-

berra House, Australia's

defence headquarters in

London, is to be closed

down on orders trom the

Prime Minister (Mr. Men

zies).
The staff of about 150 will

be transferred 2h miles from

Jermyn Street (near Picca

dilly) to Australia House,

where extensive changes will

be necessary
Mr. Menzies ordered the

change to save money and

make co-ordination between

service and civil departments

easier.

PAY
ww

THE
country's most;

colossal job'
of

homework was:

well under wav in a:

quiet Toowong hillside;

home last night,
;

Tables in the big and

well-lit lounge room. were

burdened with books and

papers; a man in grey

slacks, open-necked shirt

arid slippers sat writing

steadily. Occasionally, he

stopped to flip through

typewritten papers; often he

was called to another room,

to the phone,
Sir Arthur Fadden, with

deadline drawing closer, was

writing the document that

will be world news later this

year
Australia's 1952-53

Budget.
* *

IT'S
HARD to find

peace and quiet

for the job, even

at home the lounge room

has become the country's

'Little Treasury.' ... Sir

Arthur told us that the

phone started ringing yes

terday at 7.30 a.m.; keeps

ringing throughout the

day and way on until mid

night. .

MOSTOF the calls'

are legitimate;,

connected with!

iay -by-day Treasury ad

ministration. So there's a

(veil-trodden path from

ounge to phone then back'

again to the homework, with

time out only for quick

meals.
It's quite a job— last year's

Budget filled 179 big, closely

printed pages; disposed of

vast mountains of money

(£1,056,104,000). This year's

Budget should be at least as

lengthy and even more com

plex. A Canberra team has

been working on it for

months: the final draft is

Sir Arthur's own responsi

bility, and he expects to

have it ready for Cabinet

next week. . Real brow

furrowing homework, Junior.

? *

rriHE VISITING

X FIJIAN foot

ballers' dark eyes

flashed with pride . . .

Across the road, as their

bus arrived at the Hotel

Canberra last night, was a

welcoming band, bravely

uniformed and playing

their favourite hymns.
What a welcome! . . . No

body quite had the heart

to tell 'cm it was the

Salvation Army, and it

plays there every Thurs

day night.

QUEEN
STREET, we

have to report, has

just passed some

sort of historic milestone: As

a. result of latest revalua

tions, best business land is

now officially worth hold

your breath £{-million an

acre. One city building

management, which made a

£1600 net profit last year,

finds itself faced with a

£1900 bill for land taxes this

year.

AN AIRLINE attendant 

tells you your flight has 

been cancelled. A retail 

assistant explains your urgent 

order has been delayed 

indefinitely. A call centre 

operator informs you that your 

insurance company refuses to 

pay your claim.

Even though we know 

frontline employees are mostly 

the bearers of bad news rather 

than the creators of it, we have a 

dreadful track record for 

“shooting the messenger”.

During the pandemic, the 

practice of shooting the 

messenger seemed to take off as 

much as baking bread and 

binge-watching Squid Game.

Most recently we have 

directed our blame toward 

those working on the frontline 

in the rebounding but besieged 

travel and leisure industries.

We know it’s wrong to shoot 

the message carrier, but that’s 

not stopped the frothing hordes 

at airports and hospitality 

hotspots around the country 

from doing so.

In a recent study published 

in the Harvard Business 

Review, researchers discovered 

that we have a natural in-built 

tendency to shoot the 

messenger even though we 

know they are not personally 

responsible for our plight.

The study concluded that we 

attempt to make sense of unfair 

or untimely bad news by 

blaming our messengers  for 

things outside their control.

Regrettably, we appear to be 

naturally wired to blame those 

who tell us the things we don’t 

want to hear. Having someone 

to blame makes us feel better. 

That’s particularly the case 

in instances where we feel we 

have a complete lack of control 

over a situation such as when a 

flight is unexpectedly cancelled.

While it might be difficult to 

reverse our well-ingrained 

practice of shooting the 

messenger, there is one simple 

piece of advice that might help 

suppress our urge to lay the 

blame squarely at the feet of a 

frontline employee.

We can attempt to live by the 

golden rule that tells us we 

should treat others the way we 

want to be treated.

PROf GARy MARtIn Is A wORkPLACE 

And sOCIAL AffAIRs ExPERt

Think twice 
before you 
shoot the 
messenger

GARy
MARtIn

Some	of	GEA’s	media	coverage	
over	the	year.
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Political	Interface
Over	2022-23	GEA	has	established	and	maintained	solid	relationships	with	representatives	from	the	
major	political	parties	at	federal	and	state	levels.

Our	initial	contacts	through	2022	were	important	to	announce	the	arrival	of	a	higher	profile	GEA.	But	
with	the	completion	of	the	ACIL	Allen	and	Frontier	Economics	work	we	have	been	briefing	political	
offices	and	government	departments	with	a	clear,	robust	and	emphatic	position	on	LPG’s	ability	to	be	
part	of	the	energy	mix.

Constituency	Building
In	November	2022	GEA	held	the	first	of	its	Member	Forum	in	Brisbane	to	share	and	discuss	its	new	
research,	communications	agenda	and	it	implementation.	This	proved	extremely	useful	for	engaging	
Members	on	common	communications	goals,	issues	and	approaches.	GEA	has	committed	to	holding	
similar	Members	Forums	across	the	states	in	2023.

GEA’s	fortnightly	Members	Advisory	e-mail	update	provides	Members	with	up-to-date	information	on	
GEA	activities,	the	issues	being	canvassed	and	the	reaction	from	stakeholders	across	the	country.

Website	Redevelopment
The	Association	developed	and	launched	
a new website to make it instinctive to 
navigate,	easy	to	read,	searchable	by	web	
browsers	and	consistently	compiled,	to	make	
it	a	worthwhile	resource	and	promotional	tool	
–	for	members,	stakeholders	and	the	public.

The	desire	with	the	new	website	was	
to	develop	a	user-friendly,	intuitive	and	
valuable	resource,	while	also	maximising	it	
as	a	conduit	to	stakeholders,	media	and	the	
broader	community.

Launched	in	June	2022,	the	website	is	based	
on	applying	valid	html	and	best	practice	
database	and	template	formatting	to	ensure	
the	site	is	now	accessible	and	searchable	
by	all	search	engines.	The	redesign,	in	
keeping	with	the	GEA	Strategic	Plan	and	
Communications	Strategy,	has	moved	away	

Member Resources
New	materials	designed	to	empower	GEA	Members	in	their	communications	activities	were	developed	
and	shared,	summarising	the	ACIL	Allen	and	Frontier	Economics’	research.

These	research	findings	are	available	from	the	website.

from	simply	a	GEA	focus,	to	be	more	outwardly	looking.

This	has	paid	immediate	dividends,	with	the	new	site	recording	152,955	visits	between	June	2022	and	
March	2023	(inclusive).	Averaging	more	than	15,000	visits	per	month,	this	is	a	marked	improvement	on	
the	previous	site’s	2,000	visits	per	month.	The	new	site	has	seen	370,393	pages	accessed	and	365,230	
files	downloaded.
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GEA 2022 National Forum
In	March	2022	GEA	committed	to	the	pandemic-delayed	National	Forum	over	26-27	May	2022.	GEA	
undertook	substantial	preparations	to	make	the	Forum	a	reality	and	a	success,	developing	the	program	
and	event	management	in	quick	time.	With	120	delegates,	sponsors	and	trade	exhibitors	engaged	in	the	
forward-looking	program	to	provide	valuable	insights	from	expert	speakers	and	panelists.

World	LPG	Association

AGIT

Over	2022-23	GEA	participated	in	a	number	of	World	LPG	Association	(WLPGA)	renewable	LPG	
(rLPG)	working	group	meetings.	This	working	group	has	the	objective	of	demonstrating	the	credibility	of	
meeting	at	least	50%	of	2050	non-chemical	LPG	demand	with	rLPG.	

At	the	beginning	of	2023,	the	GEA	Board	made	the	decision	to	join	WLPGA,	effective	from	GEA’s	new	
financial	year	in	April.	GEA’s	research	has	been	well	received	by	the	many	national	LPG	associations	
and	industry	representatives	that	make	up	WLPGA	and	we	look	forward	to	collaborating	with	all	over	the	
years	to	come.

During	2022-23,	GEA	continued	to	engage	with	the	Australian	Gas	Industry	Trust	and	gas	industry	
associations	APPEA,	ENA,	APGA	and	GAMAA	via	the	communications	working	group	tasked	with	
collaborating	on	issues	critical	to	the	gas	industry	and	the	Gas	Future	Policy	group	tasked	with	engaging	
and	advocating	on	policy	issues	vital	to	the	gas	industry.

GEA	thanks	AGIT	for	its	shared	funding	of	the	Frontier	Economics	modelling	so	crucial	to	the	industry’s	
positioning.

AGM
In	August	2022,	GEA	successfully	convened	its	64th	Annual	General	Meeting	(AGM)	as	a	face-to-face	
event	for	the	first	time	in	two	years	due	to	the	Covid	pandemic.

The	AGM	heard	updates	from	the	Chair,	Treasurer	and	CEO,	before	electing	a	new	Board	members	and	
Board	Members	electing	new	Office	Bearers,	with	Amber	Fennell	(Origin	Energy)	re-elected	as	Chair,	
Gareth	O’Brien	(Elgas)	elected	as	Deputy	Chair	and	Tanya	Rybarczyk	(Kleenheat)	elected	as	Treasurer.	
The	Board	also	appointed	Rohan	Dangerfield	(Ampol)	as	a	Board	Member.
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Technical Report with Darryl Ramm

Building	a	Carbon	Neutral	Future
Global	warming	and	a	pathway	to	carbon	neutrality	has	been	
the	focus	of	governments,	community,	board	rooms,	the	
media,	and	Gas	Energy	Australia’s	advocacy	efforts	over	the	
last	year.	The	direction	adopted	has	been	to	amend	what	
we	have	to	include	renewably	sourced	fuel	gases	rather	
than	reinvent	new	standards.	Realising	our	strength	that	the	
consumer	does	not	have	to	do	anything	for	the	switch	to	
renewable	LPG,	we	will	pivot	to	carbon	neutral	fuels	using	the	
same	equipment	and	infrastructure.

LCC27	Transition
The	transition	window	for	the	LCC27	connection	ended	on	the	1st	of	April	2022.		From	this	date	forward	
gas	appliances	must	be	manufactured	with	a	LCC27	connection.	This	milestone	marked	the	design	and	
manufacturing	transition	period,	existing	POL	both	valve	and	appliance	connections	can	still	be	used.	
Companies	are	actively	promoting	the	safety	aspects	of	the	new	connection.

A	working	group	from	the	Safety	Standards	and	Technical	Committee	continues	to	meet	monthly	to	

monitor	the	transition	and	discuss	issues	
identified	during	the	preceding	month.

Simple	challenges	such	as	filler	guns	that	work	
on	both	connection	types	and	information	on	
tightening	a	POL	appliance	connection	in	the	
LCC27	valve	so	that	it	engages	the	check	valve	
and	lets	gas	flow	are	two	of	a	small	number	
of	issues	raised	and	dealt	with.	The	working	
group continues to communicate with the 
Gas Technical Regulators on this important 
consumer	safety	initiative.

Bromic	–	promoting	the	safest	LPG	cylinder	connection.

Updating	Our	Most	Important	Document
Arguably	the	most	important	document	to	our	LPG	industry,	Australian	Standard	AS1596:	Storage	
and	handling	of	LP	Gas	is	under	review	thanks	to	the	work	of	the	Safety	Standards	and	Technology	
Committee	(SSTC)	last	year.	In	December	2022	Standards	Australia	formally	notified	the	Standards	
Australia	Technical	Committee	ME-015	that	they	had	accepted	the	GEA	project	proposal	to	review	this	
standard	and	work	has	commenced.		

There	were	some	amendments	made	to	AS1596	in	2017	and	2020	and	SSTC	had	been	keeping	a	log	
of	items	that	need	addressing	including	clearer	wording	and	a	large	list	of	reference	standards	that	have	
been	updated	since	the	standard	was	last	published.		The	review	will	ensure	we	keep	our	bible	current.	
It	is	also	an	opportunity	to	build	on	the	strong	technical	and	safety	foundations	to	decarbonise	our	fuel	
gases	by	expanding	the	scope	of	the	standard	to	allow	it	to	cover	renewable	LPG,	as	well	as	blended	
products,	including	with	Dimethyl	Ether	(DME).

Over	100	items	ranging	from	simple	grammar	through	to	the	recognition	of	renewable	gas	by	the	
standard	will	help	ensure	LP	Gas	remains	a	safe	and	reliable	energy	source	for	generations	to	come	
was	provided	by	members.		These	suggestions	were	exhaustively	reviewed	and	endorsed	by	the	GEA	
Safety	Standards	and	Technology	Committee	(SSTC)	and	complied	into	a	final	list	that	has	been	tabled	
by	our	representatives	led	by	David	Collins	SSTC	member	and	Chair	of	ME-015	and	ably	supported	by	
our	representatives.	

There	is	still	a	lot	of	work	before	the	standard	is	published	and	the	SSTC	will	support	our	
representatives	on	ME-015	David	Collins	(Chair),	James	Batchen,	Nathan	Dixon,	Barry	Duckworth,	
Paul	Gordon,	Simon	Marshall,	Steve	Reynolds,	Michael	Treloar	and	Corin	Urquhart	as	this	vital	industry	
standard	goes	through	a	major	refresh	and	puts	in	place	a	technical	building	block	for	a	carbon	neutral	
future.

The	technical	foundations	for	a	carbon	neutral	future	are	being	built	through	modification	of	the	scope	
of	existing	Australian	Standards	to	encompass	renewably	sourced	gases	and	recognised	that	already	
trusted	safety	and	design	practices	can	be	used	to	include	like	fuel	gasses	with	similar	properties	such	
as	Dimethyl	Ether	(DME).	To	achieve	this:	

• In	the	GEA	project	proposal	to	review	AS/NZS1596:	Storage	and	handling	of	LPG,	GEA	has	
requested	the	committee	include	an	allowance	for	innovation	and	fuel	gas	blends	within	the	
current	standard.	

• In	the	project	proposal	to	review	AS/NZS	5601:	Gas	Installations,	GEA	has	requested	
the	committee	recognise	renewably	sourced	gases	and	blends	that	would	conform	to	
AS4670:2018	Commercial	Propane	and	Commercial	Butane	for	Heating	Purposes.

• In	the	GEA	project	proposal	to	review	AS2746:	Workshops	for	gas	fueled	vehicles.	The	
project	would	expand	the	scope	to	include	hydrogen	and	fuel	blends	from	renewable	
sources.

These	projects	will	give	a	sound	engineering	platform	to	continued	reduction	of	the	carbon	footprint.		
There	is	still	work	to	be	done	on	the	consumer	appliance	end	and	engaging	stakeholders	in	expanding	
the	fuel	quality	specification	to	recognise	renewably	sourced	fuel	gases	as	well	as	blended	products.
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Engaging with Technical Regulators

Delivering	Our	Goods

The	Secretariat	continues	to	work	with	Technical	Regulators	across	all	aspects	of	our	industry	from	
regular	interaction	with	the	Gas	Technical	Regulators	Committee,	Workplace	Health	and	Safety	
Regulators	and	Environmental	Protection	Agencies.	GEA	was	recognised	by	Worksafe	Victoria	as	a	
senior	leader	in	the	gas	industry	and	has	been	invited	to	fill	a	vital	missing	cog	in	the	Victoria’s	Major	
Hazards	Advisory	Committee’s	(MHAC)	industry	representation.		GEA’s	Technical	Development	
Manager	has	been	nominated	to	fill	the	committee	representative	role.	

The	National	Transport	Commission	regularly	reaches	out	to	GEA	to	provide	comments	on	papers	to	be	
discussed	at	meetings	of	the	(United	Nations)	Sub-Committee	of	Experts	on	the	Transport	of	Dangerous	
Goods.	GEA	has	also	been	invited	to	join	the	Victorian	Bulk	Tanker	Industry	Reference	Group	facilitated	
by	Roads	Victoria.

The	Australian	Code	for	the	Transport	of	Dangerous	Goods	by	Road	&	Rail	(ADG	Code)	is	a	close	
second	in	being	the	most	important	document,	which	our	industry	operates	by	and	there	have	been	
significant	efforts	in	the	past	year	engaging	with	the	National	Transport	Commission	(NTC)	and	
Regulators	on	this	document.

This	included	monitoring	the	regulatory	transition	from	version	7.7	to	version	7.8	of	the	ADG	Code,	
which	commenced	on	the	1	April	2023,	and	preparing	and	engaging	on	the	current	full	review	of	the	
ADG	Code.	After	advocacy	from	GEA	the	latest	version	of	the	ADG	Code	(7.8)	has	seen	the	removal	of	
the	requirement	for	a	permit	in	South	Australia	to	transport	un-odourised	LPG.	South	Australia	was	the	
only	jurisdiction	that	had	maintained	this	requirement.

As	outlined	above,	at	the	behest	of	the	Federal,	State	and	Territory	Transport	and	Infrastructure	
Ministers	the	NTC	is	conducting	a	comprehensive	review	of	the	ADG	Code.	The	driving	instructions	
include	a	greater	alignment	with	the	internationally	recognised	land	mode-specific	requirements	
contained	in	the	Agreement	for	the	International	Transport	of	Dangerous	Goods	by	Road	and	the	
Agreement	for	the	International	Transport	of	Dangerous	Goods	by	Rail.		

The	NTC	Dangerous	Goods	Competent	Authorities	Panel	(CAP),	which	is	undertaking	the	review	
has	set	up	a	number	of	working	groups	and	GEA	advocated	for	and	was	allowed	to	nominate	
representatives	from	our	members	as	technical	support	on	some	of	the	working	groups	including	
Tanks,	Vehicles	and	Emergencies.	These	CAP	working	groups	prepare	working	papers	which	are	then	
released	for	public	consultation.

The	Transportation	Committee	and	the	Safety	Standards	and	Technology	Committee	have	responded	
to	the	first	two	working	papers	in	a	series	of	releases	expected	over	the	next	twelve	months	and	are	
preparing	responses	for	the	recently	issued	Working	Paper	#3	Approval	of	tanks,	bulk	containers	and	
vehicles.

GEA Working Groups
GEA’s	continued	to	work	to	address	major	strategic	policy	issues	and	opportunities	facing	the	gaseous	
fuels	industry	including:

• Climate	change,	environmental	and	electrification	policies	and	programs	that	required	
continued	advocacy	via	submissions,	stakeholder	consultations	and	media	for	an	objective,	
technology-neutral	approach	to	emissions	reduction,	including	the	Victorian	Government’s	
Gas	Substitution	Roadmap,	the	Bioenergy	Roadmap,	Low	Emission	Technology	Statement	
2022	and	the	Tasmanian	Future	Gas	Strategy.

• Energy	security	policies	and	programs	that	required	advocating	via	submissions,	
stakeholder	consultations	and	media	for	diversifying	supply	to	increase	fuel	security	and	
increasing	the	capacity	of	lower	emitting	energy	sources	produced	and	readily	available	in	
Australia	to	enhance	energy	security.

• Industry	development	that	required	contributing	input	and	overseeing	preparation	of	the	
GEA	Gas	Vision	Report,	advocating	on	behalf	of	the	industry	to	allow	gas	transporters	to	
use	the	Coffs	Harbour	Bypass,	the	expansion	of	the	Hydrogen	Guarantee	of	Origin	scheme	
to	include	all	renewable	gases	and	the	development	of	Emissions	Reduction	Fund	methods	
for	biomethane.
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Standing	Technical	Committees
GEA’s	ongoing	commitment	to	improving	safety	through	Australian	standards	has	seen	representatives	
from	its	Standing	Technical	Committees	take	a	leading	role	in	the	review	and	publication	of	the	following	
standards.

• ME-001:	Pressure	Vessels

 – AS	3992:2020	Amd	1:2023	-	Pressure	
equipment	-	Welding	and	brazing	
qualification

• ME-002:	Gas	Cylinders

 – AS	2030.2:2021	The	verification,	filling,	
inspection,	testing	and	maintenance	of	
cylinders	for	the	storage	and	transport	
of	compressed	gases	-	Cylinders	for	
dissolved	acetylene

• ME-057:	Road	Tank	vehicles

 – AS	2809.5:2022	Road	tank	vehicles	for	
dangerous	goods	Road	tank	vehicles	
for	bitumen-based	products

 – AS	2809.4:2022	Road	tank	vehicles	for	
dangerous	goods	Road	tank	vehicles	
for	toxic,	corrosive	or	ammonium	
nitrate	emulsion,	suspension	or	gel	
cargoes

• ME-093:	Hydrogen	Technologies

 – SA	TS	5359:2022	The	storage	and	
handling	of	hydrogen

• AG-001:	Gas	Appliances

 – AS/NZS	2658:2022	LP	Gas	-	Portable	
and	mobile	appliances

 – AS	4563:2022	Commercial	catering	
gas equipment

• AG-006:	Gas	Installations

 – AS/NZS	5601.1:2022	-	Gas	
installations,	Part	1:	General	
installations 

 – AS/NZS	5601.1:2022	Amd	1:2023	
Gas	installations,	Part	1:	General	
installations

• AG-013:	Components	used	for	Gas	
Appliances	and	Equipment

 – AS	4563:2022	Commercial	catering	
gas equipment

 – AS	4629.1:2022	Automatically	
operated	valves	for	use	with	gas,	Part	
1:	Shut-off	valves

 – AS	4629.2:2022	Automatically	
operated	valves	for	use	with	gas,	Part	
2:	Vent	valves	

• MS-011:	Hazardous	atmospheres

 – AS/NZS	IEC	60079.10.1:2022	
Explosive	atmospheres	Classification	
of areas - Explosive gas atmospheres

Industry	Taskforces
GAS VISION TASKFORCE –	tasked	with	developing	a	report	outlining	a	vision	which	will	reflect	the	
ambitions	of	Australia’s	downstream	gas	fuels	industry	to	make	a	positive	contribution	to	Australia’s	low	
carbon	future	out	to	2050	and	beyond.	This	Taskforce	has	three	subcommittees:

• Modelling	workstream	–	tasked	with	commissioning	modelling	to	demonstrate	a	credible	
pathway	to	net	zero	emissions,	focused	on	potential	fuel mixes	which	can	help	the	industry	
decarbonise.

• Emissions reduction	workstream	–	tasked	with	establishing	a	framework	for	renewable	and	
net	zero	downstream	gas	fuels	within	the	current	emission	reduction	regulatory	framework	
in	Australia	such	as	the	Emission	Reduction	Fund,	the	Clean	Energy	Regulatory	and	
ARENA.	Its	objective	is	to	ensure	efforts	to	decarbonise	gas	fuels	are	recognised	and	
rewarded.

• Technical workstream	–	tasked	with	identifying	potential	technical	and	regulatory	barriers	to	
implementing	the	Vision.

POWER GENERATION TASKFORCE – utilised	case	studies	of	Australian	gaseous	fuels	off-grid	
power	generation	applications	for	use	in	GEA	advocacy	documents	such	as	budget	submissions,	
election	statements,	consultation	responses	and	for	circulation	via	GEA	communication	channels.	Made	
representations	to	governments	and	industry	on	the	benefits	of	utilisation	of	gas	fuels	for	off	grid	power	
generation.

COVID-19 TASKFORCE -	tackled	issues	relevant	to	the	downstream	gas	industry	including,	
representations	to	relevant	federal	and	state	minsters	highlighting	the	essential	nature	of	gas	fuels	
including	the	supply	chain,	and	measures	being	implemented	by	industry	to	minimise	the	spread	of	
the	virus,	highlighting	opportunities	for	gas	fuels	during	the	recovery	phase	of	the	COVID-19	pandemic	
and	circulating	to	members	information	on	the	different	State	Government’s	ongoing	border	control	
measures	and	testing	requirements.	The	Taskforce	also	developed	a	protocol	on	cooperation	to	
overcome	pandemic	induced	gas	supply	disruptions	which.

EXCISE AND TAXATION TASKFORCE –	worked	to	minimise	the	costs	to	the	gas	fuels	industry	of	
meeting	its	tax	obligations,	including	engagements	with	the	Department	of	Prime	Minister	and	Cabinet’s	
Deregulation	Taskforce,	looking	at	reducing	compliance	costs	for	businesses	in	the	administration	of	
excise.

TRAINING AND LICENCING –	provided	representation	to	the	Australian	Industry	Standards	(AIS)	–	
Gas	Industry	Reference	Committee	and	in	conjunction	with	the	Transportation	Committee	developed	
an	industry	response	to	the	AustRoads	National	Heavy	Vehicle	Driver	Competency	Framework	
Consultation	Regulatory	Impact	Statement.

GEA	appreciates	and	thanks	all	its	representatives.		A	special	mention	to	David	Collins	(CEM	
International),	Clay	Roberts	(Kleenheat)	and	Corin	Urquhart	(GAMECO)	for	their	efforts	over	the	years	
as	they	stood	down	from	representing	GEA	on	Standards	Australia	(SA)	Committees	ME-057	(David),	
ME-015,	AG-008,	ME070	(Clay),	and	AG-006	(Corin).			GEA	welcomes	their	replacements	-	Steve	
Graham	(Air	and	Gas)	ME-057,	Nathan	Dixon	(Kleenheat)	ME-015,	AG-008,	ME070		and	Grant	Dalziell	
(Kleenheat)	AG-006.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE –	provides	the	collection	and	collation	of	industry	data	for	the	
quarterly	Health	and	Safety	Reports	and	open	discussions	in	regular	drop-in	discussion	sessions.		This	
committee	supports	engagement	with	work	health	and	safety	regulators	on	Major	Hazard	Facility	issues.	

STANDARDS MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE –	did	not	convene	during	the	period.

SAFETY STANDARDS AND TECHNICAL COMMITTEE -	provided	technical	review,	support	and	
resources	for	working	groups,	SSTC	subcommittees	and	Australian	Standards	Technical	Committees	
including	engagement	in	the	following	key	projects.

• Supporting	the	Safe+Connect	transition,

• Review	of	AS1596:	Storage	and	handling	of	LP	Gas

• Gas Technical Regulators Committee engagement

• State	regulatory	consultations	regarding	the	adoption	of	new	fuel	gas	standards	(Hydrogen)	
from	Western	Australia	and	Queensland

• In	conjunction	with	the	Transportation	committee	feedback	to	the	NTC	on	the	review	of	the	
Australian	Dangerous	Goods	Code,	and

• Resources	for	the	majority	of	GEA’s	representation	on	Standards	Australia	Technical	
Committees

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE – Michael Williams from Origin 
Energy	advised	the	Transportation	Committee	in	May	2022	that	he	
would	be	standing	down	from	the	role	of	Chair.		Subsequently	Charlotte	
Clark	from	Rivet	Energy	was	elected	by	her	peers	and	approved	by	the	
GEA	Board	of	Directors	to	be	the	new	Chair	of	the	GEA	Transportation	
Committee.		The	Transportation	Committee	thanks	Michael	for	his	
leadership	and	welcomes	Charlotte	(pictured	right).

The	Transportation	Committee	continued	its	engagement	with	
regulators	responding	to	the	NSW	EPA	Proposed	Dangerous	Goods	
(Road	and	Rail	Transport)	Regulation	2022	consultation	and	followed	
this	up	with	a	webinar	for	members	with	the	NSW	EPA	that	discussed	
the	final	outcomes.		

Furthermore the committee continues to engage with the National Transport Commission on national 
regulation	review	(Review	of	the	Australian	Code	for	the	Transport	of	Dangerous	Goods	by	Road	&	
Rail)	and	international	regulation	review	(United	Nations	Transport	Dangerous	Goods	Sub-Committee	
papers).

AUTOGAS INDUSTRY GROUP –	provided	feedback	to	the	Secretariat	in	the	development	of	the	
project	proposal	to	review	ASAS2746:	Workshop	s	for	gaseous	fuelled	vehicles.

FUEL QUALITY STANDARDS COMMITTEE –	has	had	open	discussions	on	blending	of	other	gases	
such	as	DME	with	propane	including	what	a	Safety	Data	Sheet	(SDS)	would	contain	and	options	on	
how	to	reduce	the	sulphur	content	in	LPG.

INCIDENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE -	reviewed	and	supported	incident	management	alerts	
developed	by	the	Secretariat	in	response	to	media	coverage	affecting	the	gaseous	fuels	industry.

Darryl Ramm 
Manager - Technical Development 
Gas Energy Australia
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GEA 2022-23 Honours

Honourary Members

It	is	the	practice	at	the	GEA	to	recognise	the	outstanding	contributions	of	leaders	within	our	industry	with	
Honorary	Membership	of	the	Association	and,	in	some	cases,	Honorary	Life	Membership.

This	year	GEA	inducted	three	Honourary	Members	and	one	Honourary	Life	Member.

DAVID COLLINS (CEM INTERNATIONAL)

David	has	been	an	active	contributor	to	GEA’s	Safety	Standards	and	Technology	Committee	since	1995.	
He	has	represented	GEA	members	on	numerous	Standards	Australia	Technical	Committees.	Such	
is	the	standing	of	David’s	technical	knowledge	and	project	management	skills	within	the	industry,	he	
currently	Chairs	three	key	Standards	Australia	Committees:

• Liquefied	Natural	Gas	Storage	and	Handling;

• Storage	and	Handling	-	Liquefied	Petroleum	Gases;	and

• Gas	Cylinders.

David	began	his	career	with	CEM	International	in	1980	and	has	40	years	of	experience	in	the	design,	
engineering	and	manufacture	of	cryogenic	and	liquefiable	gas	equipment	both	static	and	on-road	and	
has	been	involved	in	the	design	of	major	LPG	bulk	terminals	across	Australia.

STEVE REYNOLDS (ELGAS)

Steve	has	been	working	with	chemicals	since	joining	Orica	in	1981.	His	knowledge	of	chemicals	and	
passion	for	safety	saw	Steve	take	the	role	of	Technical	Manager	–	Traditional	LPG	with	GEA,	which	was	
then	the	Australian	Liquified	Petroleum	Gas	Association.

He	served	with	distinction	for	a	decade,	representing	our	industry	on	three	Standards	Australia	Technical	
Committees	and	two	international	World	LPG	Association	Working	Groups.

We	then	lost	him	to	Elgas	as	HSE	Manager	and,	later,	as	HSE	Compliance	Manager,	where	he	
continued	his	active	contribution	to	GEA’s	Safety	and	Standards	Technical	Committee,	Health	and	
Safety	Committee	and	Fuel	Quality	Standards	Committee.

His	ongoing	contribution	to	Australian	Standards’	Technical	Committees	spans	almost	20	years.

MARK GADSBY (KLEENHEAT)

Mark	retired	from	Kleenheat	in	2021.	Until	his	retirement	he	had	been	a	member	of	the	GEA	Board	
since	2014.	He	was	an	active	contributor	to	decisions	affecting	the	industry’s	future	and	was	always	
prepared	to	ask	the	difficult	questions.

As	the	General	Manager	of	Wesfarmers	Kleenheat	Gas,	Mark	supported	Kleenheat	and	Evol	LNG	staff	
continuing	to	make	a	strong	contribution	to	the	work	of	GEA.	Mark	held	various	senior	roles	in	financial,	
commercial	and	operational	disciplines	during	his	over	25	years	with	Wesfarmers	and	became	one	of	an	
increasing	number	of	gas	industry	leaders	with	a	background	in	finance	and	commerce.	

Life	Member
TONY SAY (CEM INTERNATIONAL)

The	2022	AGM	was	Tony	Say’s	last	as	GEA	Treasurer.	Tony	stepped	down	from	the	Board	after	13	
years,	including	12	as	Treasurer.

As	Managing	Director	of	CEM	International	his	unwavering	commitment	to	the	Association	as	a	Member,	
Board	member,	National	Forum	sponsor	and	trade	exhibitor	is	unparalleled.	He	has	also	ensured	CEM	
representatives	are	part	of	our	Committees	and	Taskforces.

The	inception	of	the	Ian	Reynolds	Scholarship,	which	is	an	annual	$10,000	prize	for	young	up-and-
comers	in	our	sector	to	further	their	education,	is	another	tangible	way	that	Tony	supports	not	on	GEA	
but	the	entire	industry.

The	Board	of	Directors	has	conferred	on	Tony	GEA’s	highest	accolade,	Life	Membership	of	the	
Association	in	recognition	of	outstanding	and	distinguished	service	and	leadership	to	the	gas	industry.
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Members	and	Associates

AS	AT	31	MARCH	2023

ADVISORY	COUNCIL	MEMBERS	AND	ASSOCIATES

Gas	Energy	Australia	thanks	and	appreciates	all	of	the	Association’s	Members	and	Associates	for	their	
financial	and	in-kind	support	during	2022-23.

Air	&	Gas	Industries

Ampol

APT Facilities Management  
Pty	Ltd

BOC

CEM	International	Pty	Ltd

ELAFLEX

Elgas	Limited

EVOL	LNG

Kleenheat

MEMBERS	&	ASSOCIATES

Agas	National	Pty	Ltd	

Ausquip	Australia	Pty	Ltd

Australian	Gas	Infrastructure	
Group 

Black Cat Gas

Bluegas	-	Petroleum	&	Gas	Co	
Fiji	Ltd	

BP	Australia	Pty	Ltd

Bromic	Pty	Ltd

Clean Energy Fuels Australia

Customised	Gas	Australia	
Group	Pty	Ltd	

DJ	Batchen	Pty	Ltd

ENGV	Group	Pty	Ltd	

Gasbot

Gas Components 

Qld	Gas	in	a	Flash	Pty	Ltd	

GSGP	Pty	Ltd

Hilditch	Oilchem	Pty	Ltd	

Hotgas

International	Chemicals	
Engineering 

KLM	Energy	Services

LPGas	Business

Next	Level	Strategic	Services

Norfolk	Island	Gas	Pty	Ltd	

Oceangas Services Australia 
Pty	Ltd	

PSG	Ebsray	(Sydney)

SA	Department	for	Energy	and	
Mining

SCG	(Thailand)	Co.,Ltd

Sherpa	Consulting	Pty	Ltd	

Villa	Shipping	and	Trading	Co	
Pte	Ltd

Manchester	Tank	&	 
Equipment Co

Origin	Energy	Ltd

Rivet	Energy	Pty	Ltd

Supagas	Pty	Limited

Honorary	and	Life	Members

HONORARY	MEMBERS
Mr	James	Batchen	

Mr Don F Brew

Mr Russell Brown 

Mr	Ian	M	Brumby	

Mr	David	Collins	

Mr	Ian	R	Cootes

Mr Barry Duckworth 

Mr Bill Ebsary

Mr Bill R Feutrill 

Mr	Mark	Gadsby	

Mr Otto Gara

Mr	David	B	Ingham	

Mr	Bill	R	Jenkins	

Mr Robert Knight 

Mr	G	W	Leslie

Mr	Ian	J	Maloney

Mr	Warring	J	Neilsen	

Mr	Des	J	O’Callaghan	

Mr	David	Piggford

Mr Bruce Pollock 

Mr Tony R Rafferty 

Mr	Steve	Reynolds	

Mr	John	Ring

Mr Philip Treloar 

Mr	Tony	R	Wood

LIFE	MEMBERS
Mr Alan Beale 

Mr	John	Evans

Sir	Eric	Neal	AC	CVO	FTSE	HonFAIB	

Mr	Bruce	Reid

Mr	Ian	Reynolds	AM

Mr Tony Say

Mr	John	Urquhart	OAM



Australian	Liquefied	Petroleum	Gas	Association	Limited
Trading	as	Gas	Energy	Australia
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Phone	02	6176	3100
Fax	02	6176	0207

Email:	admin@gasenergyaus.au	www.gasenergyaus.au
ACN	002	703	951

ABN	11	002	703	951
Incorporated	in	New	South	Wales	as	Public	Company	limited	by	guarantee	Inaugurated	

1958	Incorporated	1984
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